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MESSAGE FROM THE
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
We have left behind a year that was
quite intense both for our country and
for the entire world. The year 2016
has been a year full with difficulties
during which economic risks, unforeseen uncertainties and political
and social developments followed a
quite fluctuating course on a global
scale. As with the entire world, these
developments have also affected
our country; and particularly the impacts of adverse developments in the
nearby geography have continued to
exist. Despite all these adversities
and the betrayal attempt experienced
at home in July as well as the soulshattering terrorist attacks, our Country has succeeded in maintaining its
economic dynamism in 2016, and
showed a great example of resilience
by recovering in a short period of time
after such adversities.
In our current knowledge-based
economy, human capital is becoming
more and more important day by day;
and training qualified workforce has
become one of the most important
agendas of the countries and institutions willing to increase their competitive power. Considering both the rapid
changes in technology and diversified
products and requirements, and the
increased competitive environment in
the capital markets; many institutions
in our financial markets have become
in need of more specialized and qualified human resources for sustainable
growth during the fiscal year of 2016.
In fact, it is anticipated that the need
for competent workforce will continue to arise even more intensely in the
long run. In the light of these developments; our Company has displayed
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a successful performance with its
licensing, registration and training
activities oriented towards training
human resources equipped with required skills, knowledge and potential
and conducted during the previous
period. In 2016, it has continued to
create a difference with the privilege
of operating as a licensed company
in the capital markets of our Country.
Providing new conveniences to our
stakeholders through innovation
projects that can offer both speed
and flexibility by adapting to technological innovations constitutes an
integral part of our objective to raise
qualified workforce. To this effect, our
Company has focused on technological innovations considering the needs
and dynamics of our financial markets; and implemented the projects
allowing the capital market professionals to have access to licensing,
examination, and training processes
more easily and to follow such processes more quickly and efficiently.
During the related period, the license
renewal trainings organized by our
Company have been started to be
provided on a more flexible structure,
“module renewal trainings” have been
introduced into the system by making
significant legislative improvements
regarding cancellation of scores;
and in this context, it has been made
possible to use the valid and available scores received from examination topics older than 3 years; and
furthermore, all examination-license
certificate-renewal training applications have been gathered under a single structure making SPL’s systems
much easier to use. In addition to all

SPL has
displayed a
successful
performance
with its
licensing,
registration
and training
activities
oriented
towards
training human
resources
equipped with
required
skills,
knowledge and
potential.

these innovations that we have introduced with the understanding to provide services in line with the needs of
our market, a substantial part of our
system infrastructure improvement
projects that will increase our service
quality has been completed in 2016.
All such innovations and improvement projects will also be continued
in the forthcoming period. The studies related with the Electronic Examination System infrastructure and application processes have also been
completed accordingly; and Electronic Licensing Examination (e-LS)
application system has been opened
for some specific examination subjects as of 1 March 2017. The studies
for transition to electronic examination system for the other examination
subjects are also ongoing.
I would like to express that from 2017
onwards, we, as SPL, will enthusiastically continue our activities with our
understanding to provide technologybased services in line with the needs
of the industry in order to provide
qualified workforce needed by the
capital markets for successful management of fluctuations and achievement of sustainable growth.
I would like to take this opportunity
to thank our employees and all our
stakeholders who played an important role with their efforts and contributions in our operating results for
2016 and I wish a successful year.
Yours sincerely,
Dr. Yusuf KAYA
Chairman of the Board
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MESSAGE FROM
THE CEO

The year 2016 has been left behind as
a year of difficulties with quite volatile developments experienced both
in our country and in the global markets. Despite the direct impacts on
our capital markets of the geopolitical
developments, increased volatility in
the global markets, the weakening in
global growth and domestic developments experienced in the said period,
our financial system has been able
to maintain its outlook with the support of our Country’s strong economic
foundations.
In addition; employment of knowledgeable and well-trained human resources capable of quickly perceiving
changes in line with the developments
in the financial markets is becoming
more and more important. In this context; SPL has played an important role
in providing the workforce needed
by the sector for sustainable growth
of our domestic financial sector in a
more efficient and qualified manner
and increased its service quality by
structuring its licensing, examination and training activities that it offers with innovations in line with the
technological developments and the
needs of the industry during the fiscal
year of 2016.
In the financial markets where the competitive business environment gradually becomes stiffer day by day; it has
become compulsory for companies
to employ competent and qualified
human resources and for employees
to develop themselves and to receive
and maintain the related license certificates. In this context; similar to the
previous year, there have been 81.978
applications received for licensing examinations held by our Company and
of critical importance for capital markets in 2016; and the total number of
licenses granted under the scope of
our licensing activities conducted so
far has reached to 78.103 by the end
of 2016. When compared with 2015,
it is noted that the increase in the total number of licenses, which was recorded as 8.931 units has occurred at
a higher level than the previous years;
and every stage of our licensing and
examination activities have been successfully managed with high precision
during the related period.
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Under the scope of our training activities in 2016; our Renewal Trainings,
Professional Development Trainings
and Appraisers Professional Applied
Training Programmes have been continued on an intensive basis. As a result of our web-based License Renewal Trainings offered over the Online
Training Portal (OEP), 7.494 licenses
have been renewed and activated in
2016. In addition, 536 people have
participated in our Professional Development Trainings organized with our
strong trainer staff comprising both
the industrial professionals and the
academicians, thus recording a 89%
increase compared to the year 2015.
Similarly, there has been a strong demand for our Appraisers Professional
Applied Training Programs as well;
and 289 people have successfully
completed such applied trainings during the previous period. On the other
hand; without slowing down on our
way to achieve our target of becoming the knowledge and training center
of the sector, our training calendar
for 2017 has been prepared and published on our website in December.
Our suggestions that we have forwarded to the Capital Markets Board
(Board) considering the changing
needs of examinees and licensed
professionals have been found appropriate and introduced by our Company to the system in the fiscal period
of 2016. Upon our suggestions; the
renewal trainings held by our Company have been divided as “licence
renewal” and “module renewal” trainings with their contents enriched; and
alternatives offering conveniences to
participants in selection of courses
have been provided and the “module
renewal trainings” introduced to the
system have brought the opportunity
to use the valid scores received from
the examination topics older than 3
years. Thus, such improvements have
provided significant support in meeting the licensed personnel requirements of capital market organizations
and publicly held corporations.
In the operating period of 2016; we as
SPL have launched and successfully
completed various projects in order to
strengthen, and improve our system
infrastructure and to catch up with the

SPL increased
its service
quality by
structuring
its licensing,
examination
and training
activities that
it offers with
innovations in
line with the
technological
developments
and the needs
of the industry
IN 2016.

technological evolution. Particularly
as a result of the efforts and activities
related with OEP, SPL Application System (SBS) and Licensing and Registry
Keeping System (LSTS); all application
processes have been gathered under
a single structure and redesigned; all
applicants have been provided with
ease of use thanks to user-friendly
screens; and the renewal training users have been allowed to have access
to renewal trainings from all mobile
devices and computers and to create
customized training programs without
downloading an application. In addition; Electronic Examination System
(ESS) infrastructure development efforts made by our Company in order
to hold licensing exams electronically
have been completed and Electronic
Examination Room has been created
under the structure of our Company. In
the first stage, the application system
for Electronic Licensing Examinations
(e-LS) to be held in relation to Corporate Governance Rating and Credit
Rating License examination subjects
have been opened on 1 March 2017;
and the electronic examinations in the
related examination subjects will be
started to be held as of 3 April 2017.
In addition; our efforts for incorporation of the other examination subjects
under the scope of e-LS are continued
intensely; and a gradual transition by
the other license types is planned to
be implemented.
We believe that the projects and innovations that we have implemented
as SPL in 2016 are the developments
that will create added value for our
capital market. I would like to share
with you that we will continue to grow
with a stronger presence and motivation based on a sense of “continuous
development” in 2017. I would like
to take this occasion to express my
deep respect to the Capital Markets
Board and all our stakeholders and
to present my sincerest thanks to the
esteemed members of our Board of
Directors and the employees of our
Company.
Yours sincerely,
Tuba ERTUGAY YILDIZ
Chief Executive Officer and
Board Member
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GENERAL
INFORMATION
FIELD OF ACTIVITY AND CORPORATE DETAILS
Capital Markets Licensing, Registry
and Training Agency Inc. (“SPL” or
the “Company”) was founded as a
joint stock company subject to the
provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code to operate in accordance
with the assignment and authorization made by the Capital Markets
Board (CMB) pursuant to the Capital
Markets Law and the relevant legislation, and it was registered and acquired legal personality on 16 June
2011.

WE ARE DIFFERENT,
BECAUSE...
We are the only company authorized
to provide licensing, examination and
registry services in our country.
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SPL is authorized by the CMB to
conduct licensing examinations in
order to determine the professional
competency, knowledge and skills of
those employed in the capital market
institutions and publicly-held corporations, provide license demonstrating their professional competencies
with regard to the relevant areas of
specialization, keep the registry records of the license holders and organize training courses on licenses.
Our company has no branches. The
company is established for an indefinite period as of the date of its registration and announcement.

Reporting Period:
1 January 2016-31 December 2016
Commercial Title: 			
Sermaye Piyasası Lisanslama Sicil
ve Eğitim Kuruluşu A.Ş.
(Capital Markets Licensing, Registry
and Training Agency Inc.)

Capital
Markets
Licensing
Registry and
Training
Agency Inc.

Head Office Address:
19 Mayıs Mahallesi Samanyolu
Sokak No: 70 34360 Osmanbey
Şişli, İstanbul - Turkey
Phone Number: 			
+90 212 292 82 00
Fax Number:
+90 212 292 83 00
Website address: 			
www.spl.com.tr
Electronic mail: 			
info@spl.com.tr
Tax Office and
Tax Identification Number: 		
Mecidiyeköy / 7630584942
Trade Registration Number:
781336
MERSIS No:
				
0763-0584-9420-0019
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MANAGEMENT AND SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

MISSION AND VISION

The capital of our Company as of
31 December 2016 is 2,000,000 TL
and it has no direct or indirect subsidiary. The nominal capital amount
of 2,000,000 TL is wholly commit-

OUR MISSION

OUR VISION

To contribute to breeding and ensuring continuous development of qualified workforce required by the capital markets of our country towards
becoming a global brand through our
licensing, registration and training
services.

To be an outstanding institution
which makes a difference with the
activities it performs in the national
and international arena to develop
the competencies of the capital market professionals of our country.

ted paid by the shareholders pro-rata
to their shares and paid in full. The
shareholding structure of our Company as of 31 December 2016 is given in the following table.

TABLE 1 - SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE OF OUR COMPANY AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2016
Shareholder’s Name

Class of
Shares

Number of Shares
(Unit)

Amount of Shares
(TL)

Percentage
(%)

Borsa İstanbul Inc.

A

400,000

400,000

20.00

Central Registry Agency Inc.

B

210,000

210,000

10.50

İstanbul Settlement and Custody Bank Inc.

B

210,000

210,000

10.50

Turkish Capital Markets Association

C

980,000

980,000

49.00

Appraisers’ Association of Turkey

C

200,000

200,000

10.00

2,000,000

2,000,000

100.00

TOTAL

The Board of Directors comprises the
members nominated by the shareholders and elected by the General
Assembly, the members appointed by
the Board and the General Manager.
There exist no privileged shares in
our Company, and the Board Members have neither any transaction

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
The executive bodies of the Company are the General Assembly and the
Board of Directors.
The Company General Assembly is
composed of the Company shareholders and it is the highest decisionmaking body of the Company.

with our Company in his/her or another’s behalf nor any activity within
the scope of the prohibition of competition.

The Company organization comprises of the Examination Board,
General Manager, Assistant General

The composition of our Company’s
Board of Directors structure and its
senior management as of 31 December 2016 are given in Table 2.

TABLE 2 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Member of Board
Dr. Yusuf KAYA*
Turkish Capital Markets Association (TSPB) **
(Representative: Gülsevin ÇİPLİ)
Tuba ERTUGAY YILDIZ

Appointing Entity/
Nominating Class of Shares

Start Date of
Term of Office

Chairman

CMB

25.10.2016

Vice Chairman

C

28.09.2016

Title

CEO and Board Member

Managers, and the units connected
thereto.
The Examination Board is established
as an independent board which develops recommendations in relation
to the license types and examination
topics and it is responsible for the actual execution of the examinations.
The Examination Board is under the
direct supervision of the Board of Directors and operates independently.

CHAIRMAN OF THE
BOARD

EXAMINATION BOARD

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS OFFICER

26.03.2015

Hikmet Aydın SİMİT

Board Member

CMB

26.03.2013

İlkay ARIKAN

Board Member

C

16.09.2014

Prof. Dr. Erişah ARICAN***

Board Member

A

27.07.2016

*

Pursuant to the Board’s decision no. 29/1015 dated 25 October 2017, Mr. Dr. Yusuf KAYA has been appointed in place of Mr. Tevfik KINIK who
resigned from his duty as the Chairman of the Board.

**

The legal entity TSPB is itself a Board Member of our Company; and by the Board of Directors’ Resolution dated 5 September 2016, Ms. Gülsevin
ÇİPLİ was appointed as the real person representative of TSPB in place of Mr. Şahin Alp KELER and it was registered with the trade register on
28 October 2016.

LICENSING,
REGISTRATION
AND EXAMINATION
DEPARTMENT

TRAINING
DEPARTMENT

ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

ADMINISTRATIVE
AFFAIRS
DEPARTMENT

BUSINESS DEV.
AND PROJECT
MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT

MANAGER

MANAGER

MANAGER

MANAGER

MANAGER

*** By the Board of Directors’ resolution dated 27 June 2016, Ms. Prof. Dr. Erişah ARICAN and Ms. Hanife SARP were elected as the Board Members
in place of Mr. Hüseyin ZAFER and Mr. Necdet ŞAHİNKÜÇÜK who resigned from their duties as the Board Members and this issue was registered
with the trade register on 27 July 2016. Ms. Hanife SARP resigned from Board Membership on 30 November 2016.
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MAIN ROLES AND POWERS
In accordance with the authorization given by the CMB, SPL takes as
a MISSION to contribute to breeding
and ensuring continuous development of qualified workforce required
by the capital markets of our company towards becoming a global brand
through licensing, registration and
training services; and its major roles
and powers determined thereof are
explained below.
Set the standards for determining the professional competencies, knowledge and skills of the
individuals who carry or will carry
their activities in accordance with
the Capital Markets Law and the
relevant legislation; and develop
their professional competencies
with regard to the relevant areas
of specialization,

OUR MISSION IS
to contribute
to breeding
and ensuring
continuous
development
of qualified
workforce
required by the
capital markets

Give theoretical and/or practical
training services to the individuals falling into this scope,
Based on the licensing activities,
organize and/or cause to be organized the licensing examinations
for these individuals, and conduct
the examinations in an electronic
environment if it is authorized by
the CMB,
Perform the licensing operations
of the individuals falling into this
scope, give license to these individuals, and organize the compulsory renewal trainings associated
with the license,
Keep and update the registry records of the license holders and
disclose these records to the public for the protection of investors

to the extent permitted by the relevant legislation,

ties to achieve this, where necessary,

Organize conferences, seminars
and courses in the field of capital markets to train the investors
and the employees of the issuer
companies and other sector institutions,

Cooperate with similar entities
and institutions established or to
be established in the country and
abroad to develop the activities of
the Company, become a member
of these entities and institutions,
offer trainings and get and export
know-how, participate in studies
conducted in accordance with the
reciprocal cooperation pursued
by these entities and institutions
among each other, and engage in
staff exchange with these entities
and institutions; make service
agreements with the universities
and the entities and institutions
providing service on these issues,

Make research on economic, financial and legal issues relating
to the financial markets; organize national and/or international
seminars and meetings that bring
together the academicians, the
market participants and the representatives of regulatory bodies
to discuss the current topics in
these areas, and be a sponsor for
the seminars and meetings to be
organized thereof,
Set principles regarding its activities in line with its purpose and
cooperate with all relevant enti-

Engage in all types of promotional activities to promote Turkish
financial market, in particular, its
capital market in national and/or
international scale.

FINANCIAL RIGHTS PROVIDED TO THE
MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE BODIES AND
THE SENIOR MANAGERS
The Board of Directors Compensation is paid to the Board Members,
and total amount of financial benefits provided to the Board Members
and the senior managers in 2016 is
realized as 462,357.36 TL. In addition, the total amount of allowances,
travel, accommodation and representation expenses provided to the
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Board Members and the senior managers and the real and cash benefits,
insurances and similar assurances
thereof is realized as 462,357.36 TL
in 2016.
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TERM OF OFFICE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS
AND THEIR PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCES
İlkay ARIKAN
Board Member

Tuba ERTUGAY YILDIZ
Chief Executive Officer and Board Member

Born in 1965 in Uşak, Mr. ARIKAN graduated from Hacettepe University,
Faculty of Economics and Administrative Sciences in 1987. Between
1997 and 1998, he attended the Capital Markets training programs at
University of Pennsylvania Wharton School in USA. Mr. ARIKAN served
as an Expert in the Capital Markets Board between 1989 and 2001.
From 2001 onwards, Mr. ARIKAN worked in the Association of Capital Market Intermediary Institutions of Turkey as the Manager and the
Deputy Secretary General, and since 2014, he serves as the Secretary
General. Appointed as the Board Member of the Central Registry Agency Inc. between 2004 and 2006, Mr. İlkay ARIKAN serves since 2006
as the Member of the Capital Markets Industry Council of the Turkish
Union of Chambers and Commodity Exchanges, and serves since 2004
as the Member of the Tax Council.

Ms. YILDIZ started her career at the Capital Markets Board (CMB) in 2002
as an Assistant Expert and received the Expert title in 2005 and the Chief Expert title in 2011. After gaining more than 12 years of extensive experience
in the regulation and supervision of securities markets at CMB, respectively
in the Enforcement Department and the Corporate Finance Department,
she started to serve as the Assistant General Manager at the Capital Markets Licensing Registry and Training Agency (SPL) in 2015 and still continues to perform her duties as the Chief Executive Officer and Board Member.
Ms. YILDIZ graduated from Istanbul Technical University, Management Engineering Department (BS) in 2001 and received her master’s degree from
Koç University, Executive MBA Program in 2009.

Dr. Yusuf KAYA
Chairman of the Board

Gülsevin ÇİPLİ
Vice Chairman of the Board

Having started his professional career as an Assistant
Expert at the Capital Markets Board in 1999, Yusuf KAYA
was appointed as an Expert in 2003 and a Chief Expert in
2010. He served as the Head of Enforcement Department
between the years of 2014-2016; and still continues to perform his duties as Executive Vice Chairman of the Capital
Markets Board.

Having begun her career in İstanbul Main Branch of American Express Bank Ltd. in 1984, Gülsevin ÇİPLİ was appointed
as the Deputy Manager in the Capital Markets Group in 1987;
then, she served as the Deputy Manager of the Foreign Exchange, Money Markets and Fixed-Income Securities desks,
respectively at the Treasury Department of Koç Amerikan
Bank A.Ş. after the year 1989.

Having graduated from the Department of Business Administration at Bilkent University in 1999, KAYA completed
the MBA Program at the Duke University Fuqua School of
Business in 2010. After completing his thesis in 2014, he
received his doctorate (PhD) degree in Economics from
Istanbul University.

Having held several senior executive positions in the fields of
retail and private banking between the years of 1993-2003, she
became Group Head of Sales Management in Private Banking
at Koçbank A.Ş. between the years of 2003-2006 and then,
she served as the Group Head of Private Banking and Wealth
Management following Koçbank/Yapı Kredi Bank merger in
2006. Having served as the CEO and a Board Member at Yapı
Kredi Portföy Yönetim A.Ş. between the years of 2009-2013,
Gülsevin ÇİPLİ has been still performing her duties as the CEO
and Board Member of Yapı Kredi Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş.
since May 2013. ÇİPLİ is also a member of the Board of Directors of Turkish Capital Markets Association.
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Hikmet Aydın SİMİT
Board Member
Graduated from Ankara University, Faculty of
Political Sciences, Mr. Hikmet Aydın SİMİT
started his career as an Assistant Inspector at
Yaşarbank in 1995. He held several positions at
Türkiye Finans Participation Bank, Credit Guarantee Fund, Arap Türk Bank, Ziraat Bank, Halk
Pension and Halk Bank.

Prof. Dr. Erişah ARICAN
Board Member
Prof. ARICAN started her academic career as research assistant at Marmara
University Economics-Finance Department in 1988. She transferred to Marmara University Banking and Insurance Department in 1990 and with her thesis entitled “The Central Bank and the Auditing of Monetary Volumes”, earned
her Ph.D. degree in 1991. ARICAN worked as Assistant Director and Board
member of Marmara University Banking and Insurance Graduate School
between 1998 and 2006, and as Director, between 2006 and 2015. She was
appointed as the Director of Marmara University Banking and Insurance Institute in August 2015, and is currently in office. In addition to her role as
Marmara University Banking and Insurance Graduate School Banking Department Chairman and Board member she has been carrying out since 2002,
Prof. ARICAN assumed the title of Marmara University Banking and Insurance
Institute Banking Department Chairman and Board member in September
2015. Prof. ARICAN has numerous studies and books on Turkish Economy,
Economic Systems, Money-Banking, Central Bank Practices, Financial Markets and Organizations.
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MILESTONES

SPL corporate website was published in English.

Class-based conducted license renewal trainings were started to be given on a web-based
manner over the Online Training Portal (OEP).
The Communiqué (VII-128.7) on Principles
Regarding Licensing and Registration for the
Professionals Engaged in Capital Market Activities was entered into force on 14 August
2014.

Class-based trainings were started to be
organized.
SPL-specific examination
system was developed.
Capital Markets Licensing,
Registry and Training Agency
Inc. (SPL) was established.

2011

2012

application

Cooperation was facilitated with Anadolu
University in the field of examinationrelated operational services.

2013

A Memorandum of Understanding was signed
with the Islamic Research and Training Institute (IRTI) in the field of Islamic Finance Training.
Exam guides for exam takers were published
for all examination topics.

2014

2015

The barcoded Graduation Certificates obtained via eGovernment application were started to be used in SBS
for licence certificate applications.
It was ensured that the renewal trainings are assigned
according to the type of licenses held by the license holders rather than their job positions or titles.
Renewal trainings were started to be provided as License-based and Examination Subject (“Module”)-based
renewal trainings.
New application regarding the scores received from the
examinations held on and after 21-22 September 2013
are no longer deleted, started.
New SPL Application System infrastructure studies were
completed and thus, all application and follow-up processes were integrated under a single roof.
Electronic Examination Room has been established for
conducting Electronic Licensing Examination (e-LS) activities under the structure of SPL.

2016

Investor Education Campaign Protocol was signed between CMB,
Borsa İstanbul, TSPB, TAKASBANK, MKK, TUYID and SPL.

The results of “2015 Turkish Financial Literacy Research” were published with
the cooperation of OECD, CMB, BIST, TSPB, Takasbank, MKK and SPL.

The authorization to grant license and keep registration records was
taken from TSPB and handed over to SPL as of 01.07.2012.

SPL and CFA Institute signed a scholarship agreement for employees of financial regulatory authorities such as CMB, Undersecretariat of Treasury, Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency and the Central Bank of Turkey.

Licensing examinations were conducted for the first time by SPL.
A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was signed with “Frankfurt
Main Finance”, “Frankfurt School of Management & Finance”, “Otto
Beisheim School of Management” and “The Society of Investment
Professionals in Germany”.
A Memorandum of Understanding was signed with South Korean
“Korea Institute of Financial Investment” and “Korea Council for Investor Education”.
The Capital Markets Law No. 6362 which has repealed the Capital
Markets Law No. 2499 was entered into force on 30.12.2012.
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SPL participated in certain activities as a responsible entity within the scope of “İstanbul
International Finance Center Priority Transformation Program” carried out by the Ministry
of Development.

SPL and CFA Institute signed an agreement for continuation also in 2017 of the cooperation agreement for providing scholarships in relation to the entrance fees of
CFA, Claritas and CIPM examinations which was signed
between them in 2015.

E-invoice and e-archive systems were introduced.
Electronic Examination System (“ESS”) software infrastructure studies and e-LS
question bank creation efforts were started.
A new Examination Application System where all examination applications can
be made on electronic and paper environment was established.
Integration between Licensing and Registry Keeping System (“LSTS”) and Online Training Portal (“OEP”) was achieved.
Automatic notification via e-mails was started to be served to those in need of
License Renewal Trainings 10 days before the date when such need will arise.
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COMPANY ACTIVITIES
AND KEY DEVELOPMENTS
LICENSING, EXAMINATION AND REGISTRATION ACTIVITIES
In this context, the number of total licenses in 2016 increased from
69,172 to 78,103 by displaying an
increase of 8,931 units compared to
2015. When we look at the breakdown
by license types, it is seen that CMA
Level 1 License certificate holds the
first place with 18,752 certificates.
CMA level 1 License is followed by
17,952 CMA Level 2 Licenses accounting for 23% and 14,720 units of
CMA Level 3 Licenses accounting for
19% of all licenses (Table 3).

LICENSING ACTIVITIES

WE ARE INNOVATIVE,
BECAUSE...
We are continuously improving
ourselves with dynamic projects
based on technological evolution
and market expectations.

In 2016 accounting period, our Company continued to grant the license
certificates to those satisfying the
prescribed graduation-level requirement among the candidates who
were successful in the licensing examinations which was organized to
improve the qualifications of those
people working in the capital market
institutions and publicly held corporations and determine their professional competencies, knowledge
and skills.

UNITS

INCREASE IN
THE NUMBER OF
TOTAL LICENSES
COMPARED TO
2015

However, out of the licenses earned
by 2016, 39,063 licenses are ac-

TABLE 3 - TOTAL NUMBER OF LICENSES1 AND BREAKDOWN OF LICENSE STATUSES (BY 31.12.2016)

License Name

Unclaimed
Licenses
2015

Licenses
Pending
Approval

2016

2015

Active
Licenses

Suspended
Licences

2016

2015

2016

2015

2016

Cancelled
(Temporarily+
Permanently)
Licences
2015 2016

Total
Licences
2015

2016

Ratio in the
Grand Total
2015

2016

CMA Level 1 License

4,169

4,026

13

275

8,383

7,418

5,543

6,226

6

7

18,114 17,952

%26

%23

CMA Level 2 License

8,648

8,199

68

1,611

5,287

7,941

907

995

5

6

14,915 18,752

%22

%24

CMA Level 3 License

2,922

2,331

47

522

7,393

8,310

2,700

3,552

4

5

13,066 14,720

%19

%19

Derivative Instruments License

2,889

2,112

35

388

5,449

6,487

1,131

1,753

1

2

9,505 10,742

%14

%14

Real Estate Appraisal License

1,002

660

85

380

3,434

4,368

1,559

1,598

43

41

6,123

7,047

%9

%9

Credit Rating License

1,225

1,065

13

249

1,744

2,280

489

689

1

1

3,472

4,284

%5

%5

Corporate Governance Rating License

1,078

962

8

152

1,601

2,018

560

710

1

1

3,248

3,843

%5

%5

542

423

11

66

150

241

26

33

729

763

%1

%1

Residential Real Estate Appraisal License
Grand Total
1
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8,931

22,475 19.778

280

3.643 33.441 39.063 12.915 15.556

61

63

69.172 78.103 %100

%100

The total number of licenses shows the number of existing licenses; however, in case of entitlement to receive a higher license following the examinations for CMA Level 1, Level 2 and Residential Real Estate Appraisal Licenses, only the number of such higher level licenses (CMA Level 2, Level
3 and Real Estate Appraisal License) has been included in the calculation of the number of licenses.
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Number of Licenses Issued in
2015

2016

Change
(%)

CMA Level 1 License

4,170

3,053

-27

CMA Level 3 License

3,162

1,823

-42

Derivative Instruments License

3,503

1,652

-53

Real Estate Appraisal License

1,642

1,012

-38

969

724

-25

License Name

Credit Rating License
Corporate Governance Rating License
CMA Level 2 License
Residential Real Estate Appraisal License
TOTAL

tive licenses while 15,556 licenses
are suspended. The number of unclaimed licenses despite entitlement
has been recorded as 19,778 in total
(Table 3).
On the other hand, the numbers of license certificates issued in 2015 and

803

557

-31

1,119

495

-56

98

176

80

15,466

9,492

-39

2016 are provided in Table 4. As it can
be seen, 9,492 license certificates
were issued in 2016 and CMA Level
1 License Certificates hold the first
place with 3,053 licenses. CMA Level
1 Licenses are followed by 1,823 and
1,652 units of CMA Level 3 Licenses
and Derivative Instruments Licenses.

TABLE 5 - BREAKDOWN OF TOTAL LICENSES BY INSTITUTION CATEGORY (BY 31 DECEMBER 2016)

Institution Category
Non-Employed Records2

Residential Corporate
Real Estate Governance Credit
Appraisal
Rating
Rating
License
License
License

Derivative
Real Estate InstruCMA
Appraisal
ments
Level 3
License
License License

CMA
Level 2
License

CMA
Level 1
License

Grand
Total

648

1,796

1,574

5,165

3,629

6,653

8,250

11,004

38,719

Bank

59

977

2,133

242

3,763

4,082

8,753

6,922

26,931

Intermediary Institution

20

416

181

24

2,427

2,654

641

454

6,817

Real Estate Appraisal Company

20

10

13

1,339

6

9

14

3

1,414

Portfolio Management Company

9

58

25

28

454

494

28

24

1,120

Participation Bank

3

59

96

21

94

172

214

326

985

Other Capital Market Institutions

173

163

189

199

208

3

3

938

Publicly Held Corporations

237

50

8

76

260

15

3

649

Real Estate Investment Trust

1

52

14

21

18

58

3

5

172

Private Pension Company

2

15

5

3

36

53

21

4

139

Securities Investment Trust

15

6

2

22

37

7

2

91

Venture Capital Investment Trust

13

3

4

9

21

2

2

54

Credit Rating Company

16

15

1

2

10

7

9

Portfolio Custody Agency

1

Corporate Governance Rating Agency
TOTAL
2

763

1
6

5

3,843

4,284

44
1

19
11

7,047

10,742

14,720

17,952

18,752

78,103

Non-employed records: The people not notified to our Company as the persons employed in the capital market organizations and publicly-held
corporations.
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26,931

However, as it can be seen from
the table, there has been a 39%
decrease in the number of license
certificates issued in 2016 compared to the year 2015. The said
decline results from the extraordinary increase observed in 2015
due to addition of the number of
replaced license certificates to
the number of license certificates
issued in 2015. The names of the
license certificates were changed
by the Licensing Communiqué
that entered into force on 14 August 2014; and those that had
received their licenses before the
effective date of the said Communiqué have applied to our Company for replacement of their previously-issued license certificates
with the newly-named license
certificates, albeit not mandatory,
and received their newly-issued license certificates.

TABLE 4 - NUMBER OF LICENSE CERTIFICATES ISSUED IN 2015 AND 2016

license
certificates
INSTITUTIONS
HAVING THE HIGHEST
NUMBER OF LICENSE
CERTIFICATES ARE
THE BANKS

26,931 certificates; and the banks
are followed by intermediary institutions with 6,817 license certificates.
In addition, it is seen that CMA Level
2 License holds the first place with
8,753 certificates in the banks holding the highest number of license
certificates. On the other hand, there
are 38,719 units of licenses pertaining to non-employed records.2

EXAMINATION ACTIVITIES
In 2015, the capital market activities licensing examinations were
organized two times pursuant to the
authorization given by the CMB in
accordance with the principles stipulated in the Licensing Communiqué,
with the cooperation of our Company
and Anadolu University. The first examination was conducted on 11-12
June 2016 and the second one was
conducted on 24-25 December 2016
at 12 city centers (Ankara, Adana,
Antalya, Bursa, Diyarbakır, Erzurum,
Gaziantep, İstanbul, İzmir, Kayseri,
Konya and Samsun) (Table 6).

The breakdown of licenses earned
so far by institution category is
provided in Table 5. Accordingly;
it is seen that the institutions having the highest number of license
certificates are the banks with

In the examinations held in 2016,
İstanbul was the city most preferred

TABLE 6 - NUMBER OF APPLIED EXAMINATIONS BY EXAMINATION CENTERS
Examination Center

2015

2016

Number of Applied
Examinations

Rate (%)

39,121

46

36,536

45

Ankara

11,301

13

10,978

13

İzmir

11,174

13

9,932

12

Bursa

4,258

5

4,248

5

Antalya

3,778

5

4,061

5

Adana

4,382

5

2,784

4

Samsun

2,839

3

3,477

4

Gaziantep

2,492

3

2,760

3

Konya

1,875

2

2,302

3

Kayseri

1,880

2

1,880

2

Diyarbakır

1,774

2

1,748

2

960

1

1,272

2

100

81,978

100

İstanbul

Erzurum
TOTAL

85,834

Number of Applied
Examinations

Rate (%)
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TABLE 7 - BREAKDOWN OF APPLIED EXAMINATIONS AND EARNED LICENSES BY EXAMINATION TYPES IN 2015-2016
Examination Type

Number of Applied
Examinations

TABLE 8 - NUMBER OF APPLICANTS BY THE CITIES OF RESIDENCE

Number of Earned
Licenses

2015

2016

2015

2016

Capital Market Activities Level 1 License

41,693

42,919

3,377

4,633

Capital Market Activities Level 3 License

18,081

14,360

1,985

1,643

Derivative Instruments License

4,920

3,884

2,023

1,229

Real Estate Appraisal License

12,165

13,350

1,033

918

Credit Rating License

3,027

2,539

765

Corporate Governance Rating License

1,964

1,650

Capital Market Activities Level 2 License

2,766

2,107

Residential Real Estate Appraisal License

1,229
85,845

TOTAL
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2016

Applicants Ratio (%)

Applicants Ratio (%)

Cities

2015

2016

Applicants Ratio (%)

Applicants Ratio (%)

31,739

38

29,397

37

Giresun

227

9

273

0

Ankara

7,772

9

7,489

10

Bolu

230

7

272

0

İzmir

5,532

7

4,779

6

Van

229

3

231

0

Bursa

2,898

3

2,833

4

Düzce

221

3

225

0

Antalya

2,797

3

2,899

4

Elazığ

217

2

227

0

810

Kocaeli

1,945

2

1,911

2

Amasya

222

2

238

0

778

592

Adana

1,967

2

1,814

2

Kastamonu

201

2

249

0

475

429

Konya

1,639

2

1,528

2

Rize

220

2

204

0

1,169

413

301

Aydın

1,375

2

1,177

1

Yozgat

202

2

205

0

81,978

10,849

10,555

Mersin

1,289

2

1,331

2

Osmaniye

202

0

229

0

Gaziantep

1,221

1

1,205

2

Aksaray

200

0

190

0

Balıkesir

1,169

1

1,096

1

Karabük

216

0

170

0

Muğla

1,062

1

1,059

1

Nevşehir

200

0

155

0

Kayseri

1,031

1

1,028

1

Batman

168

0

178

0

Denizli

1,014

1

955

1

Niğde

158

0

188

0

Samsun

964

1

984

1

Yalova

158

0

170

0

Manisa

948

1

904

1

Artvin

145

0

133

0

Tekirdağ

952

1

892

1

Kırıkkale

135

0

142

0

Eskişehir

853

1

834

1

Burdur

137

0

134

0

Hatay

864

1

802

1

Karaman

129

0

149

0

Diyarbakır

757

1

754

1

Sinop

118

0

103

0

Sakarya

658

1

739

1

Kırşehir

127

0

110

0

Trabzon

658

1

627

1

Bartın

121

0

119

0

Şanlıurfa

519

1

481

1

Ağrı

102

0

127

0

Malatya

470

1

437

1

Bilecik

108

0

114

0

Kahramanmaraş

441

1

472

1

Erzincan

100

0

119

0

Edirne

444

1

434

1

Çankırı

69

0

116

0

Afyonkarahisar

443

1

398

1

Kars

80

0

82

0

Çanakkale

396

0

390

0

Muş

71

0

72

0

Çorum

376

0

367

0

Bitlis

64

0

77

0

Zonguldak

396

0

326

0

Siirt

60

0

74

0

Kütahya

322

0

350

0

Şırnak

49

0

78

0

Erzurum

359

0

293

0

Gümüşhane

49

0

68

0

Sivas

334

0

348

0

Bayburt

56

0

49

0

Uşak

337

0

299

0

Iğdır

43

0

56

0

Ordu

307

0

304

0

Bingöl

47

0

37

0

Kırklareli

302

0

280

0

Ardahan

37

0

54

0

Isparta

299

0

275

0

Kilis

29

0

32

0

Tokat

273

0

296

0

Tunceli

33

0

27

0

Mardin

283

0

237

0

Hakkari

18

0

33

0

Adıyaman

227

38

245

0

TOTAL

82,830

100

78,778

100

the last two years. In this context,
29,397 candidates applying for licensing examinations held in 2016
reside in the province of İstanbul and
it has taken the first place with the
rate of 47% among the total number
of candidates. On the other hand;
when the cities of İstanbul, Ankara
and İzmir are considered together; it
is observed that the number of applications made by the candidates residing in the said 3 cities was 41,665
accounting for 53% of the total number of candidates.

As it can be seen from Table 6,
İstanbul is followed by Ankara and
İzmir in the ranking of most preferred
cities receiving the highest number
of applications by examination centers in 2015 and 2016; and the total
rate of preference of the said 3 cities
by candidates is 70% in 2016.

Table 8 provides the numbers of applicants by the cities of residence in
relation to the examinations held in

2015

İstanbul

by the candidates and its preference
rate was 45% with 36,536 applications for examinations.

Table 7 provides the number of applied examinations and the earned
licenses by license types in 2015 and
2016. When the table is reviewed,
it is observed that 10,555 licenses
were earned as a result of the licensing examinations held in 2016 and
the CMA Level 1 License has taken
the first place with the highest number of 4,633 units of licenses earned.
The CMA Level 1 License was followed by 1,643 CMA Level 4 Licenses and 1,229 Derivative Instruments
Licenses. On the other hand; 81,978
applications were received in total in
2016 and CMA Level 1 License has
taken the first place with 42,919 units
of applications for examinations.

Cities

10,555
LICENSES

WERE EARNED
AS A RESULT OF
THE LICENSING
EXAMINATIONS HELD

The third paragraph of article 10 of
the Licensing Communiqué stipulates that if and to the extent postgraduate study programs of universities regarding capital markets
cover all of the examination subjects
of certain licenses, then and in this
case, within the frame of agreements
to be signed by SPL with such universities, graduates of these programs
may, depending on their levels of
success therein, be deemed eligible
for receipt of the relevant licenses
without any examination; however,
in these programs, at least half of
the courses must be given and lectured by trainers having a Capital
Market Activities Level 3 License,
and a minimum past experience of
15 years in financial markets; and
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that the agreements to be entered
into by SPL in connection therewith
are subject to prior consent and approval of the Board. In this context,
an agreement was signed between
our Company and İstanbul Trade University in 2015, which was approved
by the Board; and it is still in effect in
the academic year of 2016-2017.

out by our Company under six main
headings given below:
1. Statement of Employment Notifications
2. Cease of Employment Notifications
3. Change in Personnel Duty/Place
of Duty/Title Notifications
4. Notification for Investment Institutions’ Off-Center Organization
Opening
5. Notification for Changes in Address, Phone and Other Contact
Details of the Capital Market Institutions
6. Notifications Regarding Temporary or Permanent Suspension of
the Investment Institutions’ OffCenter Organization Activities

Pursuant to the Licensing Communiqué, students that successfully
graduate from the related undergraduate programs will be given the
documents certifying their graduation and upon their application to our
Company, the licenses corresponding to the courses certified to be successfully completed will be provided
by our Company.
Pursuant to the provision of the said
communiqué, other universities have
also made applications to our Company; and if they fulfil the requirements prescribed in the Licensing
Communiqué, the agreements to be
signed in relation thereof will be submitted to the Board’s approval.

As part of the registration notification activities; the certifying documents that must be submitted for
the foregoing issues subject to the
notification are loaded electronically
into the Licensing and Registry Keeping System (“LSTS”) by the human
resources officers of the institutions
and then physically delivered to our
Company. The appropriateness of all
received information and documents
are reviewed separately by the authorized personnel of our Company.
Subsequently, the approval opera-

25,362
TRANSACTIONS
FOR REGISTRY
NOTIFICATIONS

REGISTRATION ACTIVITIES
In accordance with the item (h) of the
first subparagraph of article 4 of the
Licensing Communiqué; the registration notification activities are carried

TABLE 9 - NUMBERS OF REGISTRATION NOTIFICATIONS REALIZED IN 2015 AND 2016
Number of
Registrations in 2016

Change
(%)

Statement of Employment Notifications

7,948

8,823

11

Change in Personnel Job Duty/Place of Duty/Job Title
Notifications

5,926

9,358

58

Cease of Employment Notifications

4,469

5,261

18

Off-Center Organization Opening Notifications

1,198

674

-44

580

798

38

142

448

215

20,263

25,362

25

Notifications for Changes in Contact Details of Capital
Market Institutions
Notifications regarding Suspension of Off-Center
Organization Activities
TOTAL
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Table 8 provides the numbers of registration notifications made in 2015
and 2016. The number of transactions for registry notifications made
by capital market institutions and
publicly-held corporations in 2016 is
25,362 in total; and it has increased
by 25% compared to the previous
year. When the registry notifications
are reviewed by their types, it is observed that Change in Personnel

Duty/Place of Duty/Job Title notifications have taken the first place
with 9,358 units of notifications.
On the other hand; Table 10 provides the breakdown of the number
of employees working at the capital
market institutions and publicly-held
corporations in a field subject to licensing by institution categories.
Accordingly; the institutions having
the highest number of personnel
reported as employees subject to
licensing are the banks with 12,415
employees; followed by intermediary
institutions with 3,190 employees.

TABLE 10 - BREAKDOWN OF PERSONNEL NOTIFIED AS EMPLOYEES SUBJECT TO LICENSING BY INSTITUTION CATEGORY
Institution Category

Number of Personnel
2015

2016

11,473

12,415

2,860

3,190

Real Estate Appraisal Company

662

1,036

Portfolio Management Company

328

670

6

392

Publicly-Held Corporations

373

295

Participation Bank

152

202

Real Estate Investment Trust

48

38

Securities Investment Trust

18

27

Credit Rating Agency

10

12

Venture Capital Investment Trust

6

5

Corporate Governance Rating Agency

3

3

Portfolio Custody Agency

-

1

15,939

18,286

Bank
Intermediary Institution

Private Pension Company

TOTAL

Number of
Registrations in 2015

Type of Notification

tions of the notifications that were
found appropriate are conducted
over the system by our relevant personnel.
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TRAINING ACTIVITIES
Main headings of the activities conducted by our Training Department in
2016 are listed below:

be reactivated through participation
in renewal trainings. The content
and implementation procedures of
license renewal trainings are determined by the Board and organized by
our Company.

License Renewal Trainings specified in the 5th part of the Licensing Communiqué provided under
the authorization granted by the
Board;
Examination Subject (Module) Renewal Trainings put into application as of 30 November 2016 as a
result of approval of our proposal
submitted to the Board pursuant
to the decision taken by Board
Decision-Making Body dated 14
October 2016;
Electronic General Meeting System Training (“E-GEM”) made
compulsory for the stock exchange listed companies;
Professional Development Trainings organized to further develop
the professional knowledge and
competence of capital market
employees; and
Professional Applied Training Programs provided for enabling Real
Estate or Residential Real Estate
Appraisal License holders to satisfy the past experience condition
pursuant to the Board’s resolution
no. 22 / 737 dated 17 July 2014.

RENEWAL TRAININGS
Pursuant to the Licensing Communiqué, the license holders are obliged
to participate in the license renewal
trainings once every 3 years; and if
a license holder fails to participate
in license renewal trainings as and
when required, his/her license will
be suspended. Those with a suspended license are not permitted
to engage in the licensed activities.
However, a suspended license may
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renewal
trainings have
BEEN started
under a more
flexible
structure

As a result of our efforts to improve
the renewal trainings during the fiscal period of 2016; our proposals
that we have submitted to the Board,
taking into consideration the developing needs of the market, were
found appropriate by the Board Decision-Making Body upon the decision
no. 28/936 dated 14 October 2016.
In this context; while the license renewal trainings provided for the license holders have been currently
assigned according to their positions
and titles, it has been made possible
to assign such trainings by the types
of licenses held by them and the examination subjects of such licenses
instead of job positions or titles upon
approval of our proposal. In addition; the license holders applying for
training are now granted the right to
select subjects among the elective
courses instead of the same mandatory subjects provided that they have
received another renewal training on
the same mandatory subjects within
the past 6 months.
Another change that has been put
into application with the Board’s decision no. 28/936 dated 14 October
2016 is that the scores related to the
examination subjects that have been
successfully passed with a valid
score and that are not subject to any
license earned and older than 3 years
from the date of that examination, will
remain valid throughout the 3-year
validity period of the renewal training
program, providing that the renewal
training on the relevant examination subject is taken duly. While the

examination scores received from
examination subjects successfully
passed, but older than 3 years from
the date of examination were deleted
pursuant to the current practices applied before such change; it has now
become possible to use valid and applicable scores for the related examination subjects in the applications
for license certificates if the renewal
trainings on the relevant examination
subjects are taken and completed
duly thanks to such change.

With the
new OEP
system, the
individuals
are now
enabled to
create their
tailored
training
programs

In this context, renewal trainings
were divided as “License” and “Module” based renewal trainings; and
the individuals may receive license
renewal trainings if they are license
holders, or the related module renewal trainings if they apply for a new
license and have previously passed
from the modules subject to the related license with a grade of success
older than 3 years from the date of
examination. Thus, the related examination scores or the license will
remain valid throughout the validity
period of the renewal training.
In line with such change regarding
validity of examination scores, the
scores received from the examinations held on and after 21-22 September 2013 will be no longer deleted by our Company.
Following completion of our efforts
for improvement of renewal trainings, we have started to provide renewal trainings under a more flexible structure as of 30 November
2016 and it has become possible
to receive the related trainings over
the renewed OEP infrastructure. Users can have access to the new OEP
system from all mobile devices and
computers without installing any application.
With the new OEP system, the individuals are now enabled to create
their tailored training programs over

the renewed SBS via the elective
courses offered under the scope of
the renewal trainings. In this context;
compulsory and elective trainings
have been defined for each license
or module renewal training program
in the system; and the individuals are
allowed to select the trainings that
they desire providing that they complete the specified minimum number
of credits from the elective trainings
defined in the training pool in addition to compulsory trainings.
As part of our Company’s continuous
training policy, our efforts to develop
the contents of the renewal trainings given to the license holders are
ongoing. CFA Ethical Principles and
Codes of Conduct, one of the common compulsory subjects of the renewal trainings and provided as an
electronic book has been turned into
an easy-to-understand training after
abridgement and updating of its content.
The breakdown of license renewal
trainings by months is provided in
Table 11. As it can be seen from the
table; 7,494 license renewal training

TABLE 11 - BREAKDOWN OF LICENSE RENEWAL TRAINING APPLICATIONS BY MONTHS
Month

Number of Renewal Trainings
2015

2016

January

522

457

February

357

296

March

326

423

April

394

394

May

260

402

June

614

591

July

568

386

August

443

376

September

921

718

October

907

423

November

783

711

December

1232

2,317

7,327

7,494

TOTAL
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applications were received over SBS
and OEP in the fiscal period of 2016;
and 30% of such license renewal
training applications were received
in the month of December. On the
other hand; 40 module renewal training applications were received in the
same period.

7.494
NUMBER OF LICENSE
RENEWAL TRAINING
APPLICATIONS

The breakdown of renewal trainings
by license types is shown in Table
12. Considering the number of licenses renewed in the fiscal period
of 2016; it is seen that CMA Level
2 Licenses take the first place with
2,353 licenses. The CMA Level 2 License is followed by 1,670 CMA Level 3 Licenses and 1,227 CMA level 1
Licenses.

REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS
PROFESSIONAL APPLIED
TRAINING PROGRAMS

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
TRAININGS

Pursuant to the Board’s resolution
no. 22/737 dated 17 July 2014; past
experience condition is sought in
the event that those who hold Real
Estate Appraisal and Residential
Real Estate Appraisal Licenses are
employed by real estate appraisal
companies listed by the Board on
a full-time basis as Real Estate Appraisers or Residential Real Estate
Appraisers or they provide appraisal
services by signing a contract with
the relevant appraisal companies
without being employed on a fulltime basis.

The target of the training programs
that we implement is to increase the
professional knowledge and competencies of capital market professionals and to improve further qualified
human resources. Taking this into
account, our Company organizes
professional development trainings
with its strong trainer staff comprising both the professionals from the
sector and the academicians.

TABLE 12 - BREAKDOWN OF RENEWAL TRAININGS BY LICENSE TYPES
License Name

Number of
Renewal Trainings

Capital Market Activities Level 2 License

2,353

Capital Market Activities Level 3 License

1,670

Capital Market Activities Level 1 License

1,227

Derivative Instruments License

1,181

Real Estate Appraisal License

768

Corporate Governance Rating License

165

Credit Rating License

125

Residential Real Estate Appraisal License
TOTAL
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In the fiscal year of 2016, 33 classbased professional development
trainings were organized under the
structure of SPL in 2 categories
such as Communiqué trainings and
non-Communiqué trainings. Employees of banks, intermediary institutions and the publicly held companies have shown great interest in the
organized trainings. 536 people in
total participated in such trainings;
and it is seen that there has been a
89% increase in the number of participants when compared with the
year 2015.

5
7,494

Those who are required to, but cannot meet the past experience condition stipulated in the said resolution
participate in the Appraisers Professional Applied Training Program, the
content of which is jointly determined
by our Company and the Appraisers’
Association of Turkey and approved
by the Board; and those satisfying
the success criteria as a result of
the class-based trainings organized
by our Company become entitled to
receive a certificate indicating that
they have met the past experience
requirement.

On the other hand; with the Board’s
letter dated 10 February 2016, it was
notified to our Company that the
real estate appraisal or residential
real estate appraisal license holders
that do not have any employment or
contractual relationship with the real
estate appraisal companies listed
by the Board may also participate
in such Professional Applied Training Program and shall be deemed to
have met the past experience conditions if they successfully complete
such program.

CHART 1 - COMPARISON OF PROFESSIONAL TRAINING ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED
IN 2015 AND 2016

In the fiscal year of 2016; 298 people
have received trainings in 10 classes in total opened as weekday and
weekend groups under the scope
of Appraisers Professional Applied
Training Program.

Professional Development Trainings (Number of Participants)

ELECTRONIC GENERAL
MEETING SYSTEM (“E-GEM”)
TRAINING
Pursuant to article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) no.
6102, facilitating electronic participation in the general assembly meetings has been made compulsory for
the stock exchange listed companies.
E-GEM is a platform covering the
periods before, during and after the
general assembly meetings; and
since providing training on the subject matter to the highest possible
number of employees of companies
and intermediary institutions is considered useful and necessary, joint
trainings have been organized by
the Central Registry Agency (“MKK”)
and our Company since 2012. EGEM trainings are provided in the
form of web-based trainings via
OEP. A total of 121 company officers from the listed companies and
intermediary institutions have received E-GEM trainings in the fiscal
year of 2016.
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CHART 3 - COMPARISON OF ALL TRAINING ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED IN
2015 AND 2016
Number of Participants
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND SYSTEM
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
With the Project Management and
System Development activities, our
Company aims to design the information technologies services needed
by all units and to produce effective
and efficient solutions in accordance
with the company strategies.
In line with our “continuous development” principle, the efforts for
improvement and development of
the efficiency and safety of needed
applications were rigorously carried
out also in the fiscal year of 2016,
targeting to keep them always flexible, open to development, efficient,
secure and user-friendly.
The research and development studies conducted in the fiscal year of
2016 in relation to the solutions and
applications providing added value
thereof in terms of our Company’s
services and the improvement and
restructuring activities related with
the technological infrastructure of
our Company are summarized under
the headings below.

DATA CENTER IMPROVEMENTS
Infrastructure development activities
were conducted in order to increase
the uninterrupted service quality of
the servers in our Company’s location. In this context;
Activities for reinforcement of
redundant structure at hardware
level were conducted; and the current structure has been doubled.
The most suitable back-up models have been built using back-up,
restore and replication solutions
in order to protect our corporate
server data and to ensure high-
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level business continuity; and
disaster data back-up and redundancy have been provided for use
in case of any possible “disaster”
scenarios.

the efforts for
improvement
and
development of
the efficiency
and safety
of needed
applications
were
rigorously
carried out

It has been ensured that all the
Electronic Examination System
(“ESS”), SPL Application System
(“SBS”), Online Training Portal
(“OEP”) systems provide services
over a brand-new, modern, flexible,
and stronger server infrastructure.
The necessary infrastructure has
been established for transfer of
the LSTS to our Corporate Data
Center and its complete operation
from this center.
The Information Technologies
(“IT”) infrastructure of the systems used in our Company has
been equipped with modern information security systems up
to high standards and SIEM Log
Management System has been
established and launched for continuous monitoring and recording
purposes.

NETWORK INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS
Improvements have been made in
the network infrastructure in order
to meet the current IT requirements
of our Company at the ideal level. In
this context;
Capacity and security improvement activities were conducted
on the firewall and network infrastructure. Such activities have
provided for better and more efficient protection of LSTS and
other SPL systems against any
possible future attacks.

stallation of examination computers and the related equipment
and establishment of the IT infrastructure of the room.

Our servers’ internet access capacity has been doubled in order
to increase our service quality and
to achieve a structure capable of
providing uninterrupted services;
and a redundant internet infrastructure supported by 2 different internet service providers has
been established.
“Hotspot” system has been put
into application in order to offer
to our guests visiting our company and our professional development training participants the
possibility of Internet use based
on an infrastructure compliant
with the “Law No. 5651 on Regulating Broadcasting in the Internet and Fighting Against Crimes
Committed through Internet
Broadcasting”.

SPL ELECTRONIC EXAMINATION
SYSTEM (“ESS”) AND
ELECTRONIC LICENSING
EXAMINATION (“E-LS”)
The technical infrastructure activities related with the Electronic Examination System infrastructure and
application processes conducted by
our Company for holding licensing
examinations in an electronic environment have been completed. Upon
introduction of ESS project, both the
written examination application process and the electronic examination
application process will be conducted simultaneously. Within the scope
of the activities completed;
Necessary software infrastructure was developed for receiving
the Electronic Licensing Examination (“e-LS”) applications via SBS.
An Electronic Examination Room
was established under the structure of our Company.
An environment suitable for e-LS
has been provided through in-

Documents related with e-LS
processes have been prepared.
Activities for adaptation of SBS
to e-LS processes and its integration with ESS have been completed and then activated.

The technical
infrastructure
activities
related with
the Electronic
Examination
System
infrastructure
and application
processes have
been completed

The activities for creation of an
electronic question pool required
for transition to e-LS in relation
to Corporate Governance Rating License and Credit Rating License examination subjects have
been completed.

NEW SPL APPLICATION
SYSTEM (“SBS”)
As a result of the investments made
and infrastructure activities conducted in 2016, the new SBS has been
commissioned in our operating year
of 2016. In this context;
In addition to the application processes for written examinations,
the application processes for examinations to be held electronically have been incorporated into
SBS infrastructure.
The license applications received
via LSTS have been transferred
to SBS infrastructure. Thus, the
license application infrastructure
has been rewritten in accordance
with the state-of-the-art technology and offered again to the users
through simpler and easier interfaces.
Renewal trainings are provided
over SBS under a more flexible
structure and the users are allowed to prepare their own renewal training programs.
The processes related with examination, license, and renewal
training applications made to our
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Company have been combined
under a single structure, thus providing the users with ease of use
and access.
Users are allowed to easily monitor the current status of their licenses (pending application, active, suspended, cancelled).
License applications, renewal
trainings and examination applications have been made compatible with e-Archive / e-Invoice
processes. It is ensured that application invoices are now automatically completed by the
system and sent to the users via
e-mails. In addition, users are allowed to have access to their invoices at any time desired using
“My Invoices” menu.

SPL RENEWAL TRAININGS
AND NEW ONLINE TRAINING
PLATFORM (“OEP”)
As a result of our efforts to improve
the renewal trainings; our proposals
that we have submitted to the Board,
taking into consideration the developing needs of the market, were
found appropriate by the Board Decision-Making Body upon the decision
no. 28/936 dated 14 October 2016;
in this context:
OEP has been rebuilt on a software compatible with the international Learning Management
System (“LMS”) standards.
Renewal trainings have been
turned into mobile-compatible
format for running on all devices.
Systematic improvements have
been made in order to allow license holders to receive renewal
trainings according to the types
of licenses they hold instead of
their job positions or titles.
Module-based renewal trainings
have been designed and devel-
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The processes
related with
examination,
license, and
renewal
training
applications
have been
combined
under a single
structure

oped and the validity period of
scores have been extended again
according to the module renewal
trainings.
If a license holder is willing to apply for a new license, but the related grade that he/she intends
to use is older than 3 years, the
related license holder is allowed
to receive module renewal training for the related score and complete his/her application.
People are allowed to create their
own tailored training programs
through elective courses provided
in their renewal trainings.
If the users have received the
same compulsory courses under
another renewal training program
within the past 6 months, they
are allowed to receive a different
training of elective courses instead of such compulsory courses.
A new setup has been put into application for license application
processes, under which valid and
applicable scores received from
the modules not subject to licensing are no longer deleted even if
they are older than 3 years and
they are considered valid for 3
years if the necessary module renewal training is received according to the related examination
date.
It is ensured that information emails are sent to the users 30
days before suspension of their
licenses and if a user has not yet
completed any training program
purchased by him/her, another
information e-mail is sent to the
user 10 days before the deadline
for completion of the renewal
training purchased by the user.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION ACTIVITIES
es and Economics and Finance Club
visited our Company and received
information about our activities and
processes. In addition, we have been
the guests of the students from the
Department of Business Finance at
İstanbul University during one of their
lessons and we have given them information about our licensing, training
and examination activities.

SEMINARS ON SPL’S FIELDS
OF ACTIVITY
During the fiscal year of 2016, free
seminars were organized at the headquarters of our company for the human resources executives working
in the capital market institutions (intermediary institutions, banks, collective investment schemes, real estate
appraisal companies, credit rating
agencies, corporate governance rating agencies and other) and publiclyheld corporations on 3 different days,
during which licensing, registry keeping, examinations, training activities
and the issues related with the use of
the renewed SPL Application System
were discussed; and 63 employees
participated in such seminars.

COLLABORATIONS WITH
ASSOCIATIONS
The meeting on “Issuer Companies’
Liabilities for Payments to be made
by YTM to Investors” has been held
with the cooperation of TUYİD (Turkish Investors Relations Society), MKK
(Central Registry Agency) and our
Company. On the other hand; negotiations have been made with the Corporate Governance Association of Turkey (“TKYD”) and the Association of
Listed Companies’ Executives (“KOTEDER”) on possible collaborations for
the new period.

COMPANY VISITS

12,277
followers

SOCIAL MEDIA CHANNELS AND
CORPORATE WEBSITE

11.045
followers

UNIVERSITY VISITS
During the fiscal year of 2016; our
Company has met with the university
students in order to share information
on licensing, examination sand training activities and processes, to provide informative details about SPL’s
role and identity in the capital markets, and to introduce the renewed application systems.
In this context; the students from Arel
University School of Applied Scienc-

During the fiscal year of 2016, company visits have been continued; and
in such visits, detailed information
on licensing and examination processes, professional development
trainings, and the innovations brought
have been shared with the officers of
the visited companies and their feedbacks have been received. Accordingly, 50 companies, including, mainly the
banks and intermediary institutions,
were visited and the company visits
are intended to be continued in 2017.

1.089
followers

Our social media channels constituting an important tool to reach the target groups and audiences have been
actively used in the fiscal year of 2016
in order to share important activities
of our Company, to reflect the current
issues, and to make announcements
about the innovations and changes
that we have implemented; thus ensuring the efficiency and continuity
of the flow of information and news
about us.
During the operating period of 2016,
the number of our followers in our
Facebook, Twitter and Linkedin accounts have also increased and
reached to 12,277 people on Facebook and 11,045 people on Twitter.
Along with our social media accounts,
the content of our corporate website
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has been also updated in a regular
manner during such period and our
training, licensing, registration, examination and corporate announcements
have been shared instantly with our
visitors.
On the other hand; considering integration of our national capital markets with the global markets and the
increased international recognition
and collaborations of our Company,
all efforts for preparation of the English version of our website which was
broadcast in Turkish only at www.spl.
com.tr have been effectively continued throughout the year and our English website has been introduced in
June 2016.
Furthermore, activities for rehabilitation of our corporate website infrastructure have also been completed
and the user experience has been improved through complete upgrading
of its front end.

OUR PUBLICATIONS
A report containing the summary
data and analyses about the examination applications, success rates
and earned licenses as a result of our
Company’s examination, licensing and
training activities realized in the period
of January-September 2016 has been
prepared and shared with the public
by way of posting on our corporate
website; and the printed version of the
said report has also been distributed
to the capital market institutions and
publicly held corporations as well. The
said statistical study is intended to be
periodically published in 2017 and the
following years.
On the other hand; an informative SPL
brochure containing SPL activities
and processes has been prepared
and distributed among the capital
market stakeholders and also shared
on our corporate website during the
fiscal year of 2016.
The article entitled “What You Need to
Know About Capital Market Licensing
Examinations” written by SPL Chief
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our corporate
website
infrastructure
have been
completed
and the user
experience has
been improved
through
complete
upgrading of
its front end

Executive Officer Tuba ERTUGAY
YILDIZ and prepared for the employees working in the capital market
institutions and publicly held corporations and particularly for those preparing for licensing examination was
published in Kurumsal Yönetim (Corporate Governance) Journal, one of
the periodicals of the Corporate Governance Association of Turkey, during
the fiscal year of 2016.

be given scholarships for the CFA,
Claritas and CIPM examinations that
will take place in June and December
2017 and participation of finance professionals working in the public sector in the examinations will be supported by our Company.

Furthermore, our news entitled “Support from SPL And CFA Institute for
Qualified Workforce” was also shared
with the public in Kurumsal Yönetim
(Corporate Governance) journal.

Saudi Arabia - IRTI

INTERNATIONAL AGREEMENTS
Renewal of Scholarship Agreement
with CFA (Chartered Financial
Analyst) Institute
Within the scope of the action “Acquisition of internationally valid certificates by the state personnel working
in the finance area will be supported”,
i.e. the action no. 64 of the Component 6 “Increasing Qualified Human
Resources” topic of İstanbul International Financial Center Program in
which we take place as the Responsible Entity within the scope of the Priority Transformation Programs of the
Ministry of Development of the Republic of Turkey; a mutual agreement has
been reached to continue also in 2017
the cooperation established with CFA
Institute in 2015 in order to support
the development of qualified human
resources that will improve further our
country’s capital markets and acquisition of internationally valid certificates
by the personnel of regulatory authorities operating in the field of finance.
Within the scope of the said agreement, 167 civil servants who work in
the Capital Markets Board, Undersecretariat of Treasury, Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency and the
Central Bank of Turkey have received
scholarships for the entrance fees of
CFA, CIPM, and Claritas investment
certificate examinations for the years
2015 and 2016; and 160 civil servants
of the said regulatory authorities will

OUR INTERNATIONAL
COLLABORATIONS
The Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) signed between our Company
and the Islamic Research and Training
Institute (“IRTI”) as part of the activities
conducted within the scope of İstanbul
Financial Center is still in effect.
South Korea - KOFIA & KIFIN
By the MoU signed between our Company and the Korea Financial Investment Association (KOFIA - Global
Alternative Investment Program), our
training cooperation with the “Korea
Institute of Financial Investment” (“KIFIN”) and “Korea Council for Investor
Education” is maintained.
Malaysia - INCEIF
The MoU for cooperation signed between our Company and INCEIF (The
Global University of Islamic Finance)
for Islamic Finance and Sukuk training is also included in our ongoing
agreements.
Germany - Leading Institutions in
the fields of Finance and Training

OTHER PUBLIC ACTIVITIES
Activities conducted within the
scope of İstanbul International
Financial Center (“IFC”)
In accordance with the Ministry of
Development, Priority Transformation Programs, “İstanbul International Financial Center Program”, our
Company takes place in 5 different
actions as the “responsible entity”;
and with such actions, it is intended
to increase the qualified human resources and to develop the participation banking and interest-free finance system.
As part of these actions, and in relation to the action “Acquisition of an
internationally valid certificate by the
state personnel working in the field of
finance will be supported”; an agreement was made with the CFA Institute in 2015 to provide a discount to
the personnel working at the regulatory public institutions in the field of
finance and intending to participate
in the CFA, CIPM, and Claritas investment certificate examinations for the
application fees of such examinations and to keep them exempt from
the registration fees required to be
paid during the application for programs; and a mutual agreement has
been reached for continuation of the
said agreement also in 2017 and the
action thereof has been completed.

We have an ongoing MoU for cooperation in training between our Company and the “Frankfurt Main Finance”,
“Frankfurt School of Management &
Finance”, “Otto Beisheim School of
Management” and “The Society of Investment Professionals in Germany”.

In addition; regarding the subject matter “The number of people applying for
a license certificate related to the capital market will be increased” which is
another action that we take place as
the responsible entity, the number of
50.000 applications designated for
2016 has been exceeded and thus, the
action thereof has been completed.

In addition to such collaborations,
mutual discussions for any possible
collaborations were held with Malaysia – Finance Accreditation Agency
(“FAA”) and Bahrain - Accounting and
Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”) during
the fiscal period of 2016.

Within the scope of the other actions
for which we are also responsible,
meetings were held with the participation of the concerned institutions
related with the actions during the
fiscal year of 2016; and the relevant
activities are continued to be carried
out accordingly.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND ADMINISTRATIVE AFFAIRS

27

The human resources policy of our
Company aims to increase the motivation and performance of the personnel and achieve the Company
objectives in an efficient and effective manner by uniting the requirements of the jobs with the competencies of employees.

personal accident insurance, maternity benefit, death benefit and marriage benefit.
We have 27 employees in total, including 13 female (48%) and 14 male
(52%) employees by 31 December
2016. The average age of our employees is 34; and 89% of them have
graduate and post-graduate education levels.

EMPLOYEES
THE MOST
IMPORTANT ASSET
OF SPL

The qualifications that the personnel to be employed in our Company
must possess based on the position and title structure are set forth
in the relevant article governing the
general qualifications to be sought
in the personnel as stipulated in the
articles of association; and both the
qualifications designated for each
job application and the requirements referred to in our Personnel
Regulation must be met.

The target- and competency-based
performance evaluation system, the
activities of which were completed
in 2015, has been firstly commissioned in our fiscal year of 2016; and
the performance assessments of all
employees have been made using
this system. Accordingly; individual
success results of the personnel
from each unit were evaluated using
the performance criteria generated
considering the job descriptions
and business targets and the competencies determined according to
the title structure. We have started
to see the positive impacts of this

The employees of our Company are
employed subject to the Labour Law
no. 4857. In addition to their monthly
salaries, the social benefits provided
to employees include the lunch allowance, private health insurance,

CHART 4 - NUMBER OF COMPANY EMPLOYEES AND THEIR EDUCATIONAL STATUSES BY 31 DECEMBER 2016
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Bachelor’s
Degree
Male

3

Master
Degree

Total

application aiming to enable the
company employees to individually
develop themselves and to increase
their contributions to our Company and evaluating the employees
based on objective criteria.
In addition, orientation programs
are implemented in order to facilitate the adaptation of newly employed personnel with their jobs and
the company.
Pursuant to the Occupational Health
and Safety Law no. 6331, there is an
obligation to cause the risk analysis
of all workplaces to be conducted,
to prepare the emergency action
plans and to cause the personnel to
be given the necessary occupational safety training. The obligations
and arrangements arising from the
scope of the said law are fulfilled by
the Administrative Affairs Department of our Company. Employees
are also included in the process in

order to create awareness on occupational health and safety issues.
Our Company’s process related with
procurement of any goods and services is also conducted by the Administrative Affairs Department in
line with the principles determined
by the Company’s management. In
each purchasing transaction, actions
are taken in line with the principles
of purchasing the most appropriate
good or service over the best price,
with the best quality and in the most
convenient time and using the resources in an efficient manner. In the
purchasing transactions, it is aimed
to allow the Company units to focus
on their fields of specialization without any disruption in their activities
and to increase their efficiency. In
addition, our Company’s documentation, security, maintenance-repair,
alteration, and cleaning services are
also coordinated by the Administrative Affairs Department.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AND RISK MANAGEMENT
FINANCIAL CONDITION
The paid-in capital of our Company
is 2,000,000 TL and the net profit for
the period after tax has been realized as 3,116,902 TL in 2016. In addition; our real operating profit has
reached to 3,916,482 TL.

WE ARE RESPONSIBLE,
BECAUSE...
We are aware of the importance of
the role that we play in breeding the
workforce required for sustainable
growth.
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On the other hand; our Company’s
net sales in 2016 have been recorded
as 16,749,560 TL, displaying an 8%
increase compared to the net sales
in 2015 recorded as 15,503,730
TL. Our shareholders’ equity which
amounted to 8,460,039 TL in 2015
has reached to 11,549,773 TL at the
end of the fiscal year of 2016 and
displayed an increase by 36,5%.
The total assets of our Company
has reached to 13,330,995 TL by the
end of the fiscal year of 2016, displaying a 30,5% increase when compared with the total assets in 2015
which amounted to 10,212,068 TL.
On the other hand, the earnings per
share has been recorded as 1.56 in
2016 and it is observed that it has
remained at the same level when
compared with the ratio of 1.55 recorded in 2015.
The comparative indicators of our
Company’s profitability, sales and

3.12
MILLION TL

NET PROFIT
AFTER TAX IN 2016

shareholders’ equity are provided in
Chart 5.
When our Company’s financial indicators for the year 2016 are considered; it is seen that a growth has
been achieved in the profitability,
sales, total assets and shareholders’ equity items, and the targets set
forth in the previous periods have
been reached. In addition; licensing,
examination, registration and training activities planned for the year
2016 have been completed and the
targets specified for 2016 have been
reached.
On the other hand; based on the increase realized in 2016 in the shareholders’ equity item when compared
with 2015 and the positive developments in the other balance sheet
and income statement items, it is
seen that the capital of our Company does not remain uncovered.
Our Company does not have any risk
expected to be faced in future in relation to the financial matters such
as sales, productivity, income generation capacity, profitability, debt/
equity ratio, etc.
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CHART 5 - KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
NET PROFIT

NET PROFIT

3.12
MILLION TL

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

4,000,000

14,000,000
3,096,022

3,000,000
2,000,000

3,116,902

10,000,000
1,453,241

2011

335,072

230,011

4,000,000

2012

2013

3.92
MILLION TL

2014

2015

2016

3,871,977

3,916,482

16.75
MILLION TL
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2013

2014

2015

2016

12,000,000
9,549,304

10,212,068

13,330,995

8,000,000
1,670,387

1,703,819

6,000,000
4,000,000

1,000,000
2011

425,090

293,743

2012

2013

4,073,683

4,475,208

4,913,144

MILLION TL

2014

2015

2016

0

TOTAL ASSETS

13.33
MILLION TL

2,000,000
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

EARNINGS PER SHARE

20,000,000
15,503,730

15,000,000

16,749,560

10,094,794
7,937,271

7,870,830

8,077,054

5,000,000

0

2012

10,000,000

3,000,000

10,000,000

2011

14,000,000

NET SALES

NET SALES

0

TOTAL ASSETS

4,000,000

0

3,738,312

2,000,000

5,000,000

2,000,000

3,303,241

4,020,016

SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY

11.55

5,364,802

6,000,000

1,351,116

REAL OPERATING PROFIT

Real Operating
Profit

8,460,039

8,000,000

1,000,000

0

11,549,773

12,000,000

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

1.80
1.60
1.40
1.20
1.00
0.80
0.60
0.40
0.20

0

1.55

1.56

1.56

0.68

0.17

0.12

2012

2013

2014

EARNINGS PER
SHARE

2015

2016
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY
Pursuant to article 26 of its article of
association;
a. Our Company shall set aside 5%
of its net profit for the period
determined according to its annual balance sheet at the end of
each accounting period as legal
reserve until it reaches one fifth
of the paid-in capital,
b. The first dividend shall be set
aside pursuant to the Turkish
Commercial Code,
c. Whether to distribute the remaining amount partially or
completely to the shareholders
or set it aside as extraordinary
legal reserve shall be resolved
by the General Assembly. If the
Board of Directors deems necessary, it may make a recommendation to the General Assembly
in this issue. The distributable
profit pursuant to this subparagraph cannot exceed 20% of the
profit remaining after the deduction of taxes and the like and the
statutory legal reserves,
d. If the dividend distribution is decided to be made in accordance
with the item (c) of this article,
one-tenth of the dividend decided to be distributed which
exceeds five percent of the paidin capital shall be set aside as
statutory legal reserve pursuant
to the Turkish Commercial Code,
e. The remaining profit shall be set
aside as extraordinary legal reserve.
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On which date and in what manner
the annual profit will be distributed
shall be decided by the General Assembly upon the proposal of the
Board of Directors. The Board may
not allow distribution of profit depending on the financial position of
the Company.
Based on the said article of the articles of association, it has been
resolved in the Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting dated 28 March
2016 upon the proposal of the Board
of Directors regarding the profit distribution that the amount remaining
after setting aside the mandatory
statutory legal reserves from the
profit earned from 2015 activities in
accordance with the provisions of
the Turkish Commercial Code and
the Articles of Association of our
Company shall not be distributed to
the shareholders and it shall be kept
in the company.
By the Board of Directors’ resolution, the issues related to 2016 profit
reserve and distributable dividend
amounts are left to the discretion of
the General Assembly.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND RISK
MANAGEMENT
In our Company, the internal control
and risk management systems are
managed in a structure completing
each other.
The financial statements of our
Company and its Board of Directors’
annual report are made subject to
independent audit each year in accordance with the Capital Markets
Law, Turkish Commercial Code and
the relevant regulations. Besides
this, our financial statements and
other information and documents
are also submitted to the audit of the
relevant institution for the quarterly
published consolidated reports of
Borsa İstanbul Inc. as one of shareholders.

In addition to this, the system security tests of all our applications open
to external use (LSTS, SBS, OEP) and
the security scan of our internal systems are caused to be conducted by
the contracted security firms each
year in a routine manner, and both
the early detection of any potential
or foreseeable risks that may arise
and the smooth operation of the
system are ensured.
As of the date of the report, no adverse situation is identified in the
studies made within the scope of
the internal

On the other hand, all transactions
and results related to our activities
are controlled by the accounting department and the relevant functional
unit and a reciprocal consolidation
is made. For all transactions relating
to our Company, double signature is
sought.
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IMPORTANT ISSUES
ABOUT THE ACTIVITIES
All of the General Assembly resolutions regarding the previous periods
of our Company have been executed. In addition, the targets set forth
within the scope of the licensing, examination, registration and training
activities and system development
studies have been reached; and our
studies will be continued in line with
our targets of taking the necessary
actions and achieving the improvements and innovations for the sustainability of our activities also in the
upcoming period.

WE ATTACH VALUE,
BECAUSE...
We believe that development of
human resources is of primary
importance and therefore we prioritize
the studies that will create value.
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There is no company which is either
a direct or indirect subsidiary of our
Company; and no subsidiary has
been acquired in the year of 2016.
Our Company has not been made
subject to any private or public audit
in the fiscal period of 2016. No extraordinary General Assembly meeting has been held during the fiscal
period of 2016.
On the other hand; there is no litigation opened against our Company,
which might affect our financial position and activities.
Pursuant to subparagraph 16 of
article 16 of SPL’s articles of association; our Company’s donation
and aid policy has been specified

IN 2016 SPL
executed All
of the General
Assembly
resolutions
AND REACHED
the targets set
forth

as making donations and aids to
the foundations granted tax exemptions by the Council of Ministers, associations serving public
welfare, public institutions and private corporations engaged in scientific research and development
activities, universities, educational
institutions and to such other persons or institutions providing that
the prior information is given to the
General Assembly. In this context,
an amount of 50,000 TL has been
donated to 15th July Martyrs Solidarity Campaign in 2016.
There is no administrative or judicial
sanction imposed on the Company
or the members of its executive bodies due to any practices of our Company contrary to the legislation.
During the year 2016, no money was
lent to any Board member or any senior executive; and no credit was extended to, or no indemnity or collateral was provided in favour of them.
Pursuant to the Law no. 6698 on Protection of Personal Data (“KVKK”)
enforced on 7 April 2016; under its
capacity as the Data Controller, SPL
has shared information with the
public through our corporate website in relation to processing of personal data; and the activities related
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with this issue have been started
under the structure of our Company.
With reference to the agreement
dated 25 November 2013 signed
by our Company for supporting the
“World Bank Global Islamic Finance
Development Center” established
as a “multi-donor fund” with the
cooperation of the Republic of Turkey Undersecretariat of Treasury
and the World Bank for a period of
4 years; our Company paid in 2016
the portion of 90,000 US Dollars of
the total amount of 150,000 US Dollars intended to be contributed on a
voluntary basis.

first stage of the Electronic Licensing Examinations that are of importance for the Company activities has
been completed after the end of the
fiscal year of 2016; and the aplications for electronic licensing examinations (e-LS) to be held in the Corporate Governance Rating License
and Credit Rating License examination subjects as of 3 April 2017 have
been started to be received since 1
March 2017.

In addition, there is no event which
has occurred after the end of 2016
accounting period in a nature to
bear special importance and might
affect the rights of the shareholders,
creditors and other relevant persons
and entities. On the other hand, the

WE ARE PRINCIPLED,
BECAUSE...
We are committed to the discipline
of providing the best services on a
continuous basis.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2016
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH)
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SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2016

SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
AUDITED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

İÇİNDEKİLER

SAYFA

FİNANSAL DURUM TABLOSU

55

KAR VEYA ZARAR VE DİĞER KAPSAMLI GELİR TABLOSU

56

ÖZKAYNAK DEĞİŞİM TABLOSU

57

NAKİT AKIŞ TABLOSU

58

FİNANSAL TABLOLARA AİT AÇIKLAYICI DİPNOTLAR

59-81

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

59
59-67
68
68-69
69
70
71
72
72
72
73-74
74
75
75-76
76
77-78
79
79-80
80-81

ŞİRKET’İN ORGANİZASYONU VE FAALİYET KONUSU
FİNANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA İLİŞKİN ESASLAR
BÖLÜMLERE GÖRE RAPORLAMA
NAKİT VE NAKİT BENZERLERİ
TİCARİ ALACAKLAR
MADDİ DURAN VARLIKLAR
MADDİ OLMAYAN DURAN VARLIKLAR
DİĞER DÖNEN/DURAN VARLIKLAR
ERTELENMİŞ GELİRLER VE DİĞER KISA VADELİ YÜKÜMLÜLÜKLER
TİCARİ BORÇLAR
ÇALIŞANLARA SAĞLANAN FAYDALARA İLİŞKİN KARŞILIKLAR
ÖZKAYNAKLAR
HİZMET GELİRLERİ VE SATIŞLARIN MALİYETİ
NİTELİKLERİNE GÖRE GİDERLER VE GELİRLER
FİNANSMAN GİDERLERİ
VERGİ VARLIK VE YÜKÜMLÜLÜKLERİ
PAY BAŞINA KAZANÇ
İLİŞKİLİ TARAF AÇIKLAMALARI
FİNANSAL ARAÇLARDAN KAYNAKLANAN RİSKLERİN NİTELİĞİ VE DÜZEYİ

Audited
Current period
31 December 2016

Audited
Prior period
31 December 2015

12,432,450

9,099,818

11,489,439
903,950
903,950
39,061

8,183,103
821,960
821,960
94,755

898,245

1,112,250

418,998
417,027
45,858
16,362

606,185
487,464
18,601

13,330,695

10,212,068

1,667,345

1,647,500

81,888
825
81,063
448,139
57,714
57,714
6,779
1,072,825

292,402
16,186
276,216
486,036
25,726
25,726
24,265
819,071

113,577

104,529

113,577
113,577
-

48,608
48,608
55,921

11,549,773

8,460,039

12

2,000,000

2,000,000

(5,422)

(32.590)

(5.422)

17

(32,590)
299,227
6,166,234
3,116,902

(5,422)
153,259
3,216,180
3,096,022

13,330,695

10,212,068

Notes
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Trade receivables from third parties
Other current assets

4
5
8

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

6
7
16
8

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade payables
Trade payables to related parties
Trade payables to third parties
Income tax provision
Short term provisions
Short term provisions for employee benefits
Deferred revenue
Other current liabilities

10
10, 18
10
16

11
9
9

Non-Current Liabilities
Long term provisions for liabilities
Long term provisions for employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities

11
16

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
loss (32,590)
Actuarial losses (-)
Restricted reserves
Retained earnings
Net profit for the period
Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
AUDITED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2016

SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
AUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

Notes

Audited
Current period
31 December 2016

Audited
Prior period
31 December 2015

Revenue
Cost of sales (-)

13
13

16,749,560
(10,165,351)

15,503,730
(9,819,416)

Gross profit

13

6,584,209

5,684,314

General administrative expenses (-)
Marketing expenses (-)
Other operating income
Other operating expenses (-)

14
14
14
14

(3,433,883)
(32,348)
1,011,837
(213,333)

(2,260,263)
(69,154)
620,483
(103,403)

3,916,482

3,871,977

(12,493)

(5,104)

3,903,989

3,866,873

PROFIT OR LOSS

Operating profit
Financial expenses (-)

15

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Tax (income)/expense from continuing operations (-)
- Current tax expense (-)
   - Deferred tax income/(expense)

16
16

(882,074)
94,987

(734,430)
(36,421)

Profit from continuing operations

17

3,116,902

3,096,022

Earnings per share

17

1.5585

1.5480

(27,168)

(785)

11

(33,960)

(981)

11,16

6,792

196

17

3,089,734

3,095,237

Share
capital

Other comprehensive
income not to be
reclassified to
profit or loss
Actuarial losses(-)

Restricted
reserves

Retained
earnings

Profit
for the
period

Total
equity

2,000,000

(4,637)

90,335

1,927,988

1,351,116

5,364,802

-

(785)

62,924
-

1,288,192
-

(1,351,116)
3,096,022

3,095,237

2,000,000

(5,422)

153,259

3,216,180

3,096,022

8,460,039

2,000,000

(5,422)

153,259

3,216,180

3,096,022

8,460,039

-

(27,168)

145,968
-

2,950,054
-

(3,096,022)
3,116,902

3,089,734

2,000,000

(32,590)

299,227

6,166,234

3,116,902

11,549,773

PRIOR PERIOD
1 January 2015
Transfers
Total comprehensive income
31 December 2015
CURRENT PERIOD
1 January 2016
Transfers
Total comprehensive income
31 December 2016

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial loss (-)
Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
AUDITED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2016

SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited
Current period
31 December 2016

Audited
Current period
31 December 2015

3,903,989

3,866,873

6,7
11

599,846
53,026

400,162
24,284

14
6

31,988
(980,752)
-

(28,411)
(592,046)
80,121

11

(24,057)
(210,514)
236,268
(919,971)
(22,017)

(763.453)
(2,946,636)
267,785
(503,912)
(17,219)

2,667,806

(212,452)

1,052,693
(178,706)
(163,516)
-

521,217
(346,600)
(361,668)
17,080

710,471

(169,971)

(3,803,033)

18,017

(424,756)

(364,406)

7,679,158

8,043,564

8.043.564

4

7,254,402

7,679,158

Notes
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax from continuing operations
Adjustments for to reconcile net income to net cash
Adjustments for amortization and depreciation
Adjustments for long term provisions for employee benefits
Adjustments for provisions for unused vacation
Adjustments for interest income
Adjustments for loss from property, plant and equipment
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and
liabilities
Decrease in receivables, other current/other non-current assets
Decrease in trade receivables (-)
Increase in deferred revenues and other liabilities
Taxes paid (-)
Severence payments (-)
Cash flows from operating activities
B. Cash flows provided from investing activities
Interest income
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of of tangible assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets

7
6
6

Cash flows from investing activities
C. Changes in blocked deposits
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (-) (A+B+C)
D. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (A+B+C+D)

1 - COMPANY’S ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Sermaye Piyasası Lisanslama Sicil ve Eğitim Kuruluşu A.Ş. (“the Company”) was founded on 16 June 2011. The Company was
estabislihed to conduct licensing examinations in order to determine the professional competency, knowledge and skills of
those employed in the capital market institutions and publicly-held corporations, provide license demonstrating their professional competencies with regard to the relevant areas of specialization, keep the registry records of the license holders and
organize training courses on licenses.
The Company is registered in Turkey and its registered address is as follows:
19 Mayıs Mahallesi, Samanyolu Sokak No:70 34360 Osmanbey, Şişli, Istanbul
As of 31 December 2016, the number of employees for the Company is 27 (31 December 2015: 23).
The financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2016 were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 8 February 2017. Within the framework of the legislation, the authorized committees of the Company have the authority to change the financial statements.
2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A. Basis of Presentation
a)

Declaration of Conformity with Applied Accounting Standards and TAS
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Communiqué No: II-14.1 “Communiqué on Principles
of Financial Reporting in Capital Market” issued by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) dated 13 June 2013 and numbered
28676 and in accordance with Article 5 of the Communiqué Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”) issued by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (KGK) have been applied. TAS; Turkish Accounting Standards include c Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) and related attachments and comments.
The Company’s financial statements and notes are presented in accordance with the formats announced by the CMB on
7 June 2013, including the compulsory disclosures. In this context, necessary changes were made in the financial statements of the prior period.
The Company complies with the principles and conditions set out by the CMB, the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”), the
tax legislation and the requirements of the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance in the preparation
of the statutory financial statements. Financial statements are prepared on the basis of historical cost; The necessary corrections and classifications have been reflected in the statutory records in order to make a correct presentation in accordance with TAS.
Comparative Information and Adjustment of Prior Period Financial Statements
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared comparatively with the prior period in order to allow determination of the financial position and performance trends. Reclassifications can be made in comparative information in order
to conform with the presentation of the current period financial statements.

b) The application of new or amended standards and interpretations
The Company has applied the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the Public Oversight Accounting
and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey, effective from 1 January 2016, related to its own activity. There are no changes
or interpretations that are effective for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2016 and which are material to the Company’s financial statemenents.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations applicable as at 31 December 2016:

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective as of 31 December 2016

•

TFRS 14 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. TFRS 14,
‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ permits first-time adopters to continue to recognise amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their previous GAAP requirements when they adopt TFRS. However, to enhance comparability with entities
that already apply TFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the effect of rate regulation must
be presented separately from other items.

•

Amendments to TAS 7 ‘Statement of cash flows’ on disclosure initiative, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017. These amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendment is part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative,
which continues to explore how financial statement disclosure can be improved.

•

Annual improvements 2014, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These set of amendments
impacts 4 standards:

•

Amendments IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments
clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax
base. It also clarify certain other aspects of accounting for deferred tax assets.

•

Amendments to TFRS 2, ‘Share based payments’ on clarifying how to account for certain types of share-based payment
transactions, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. This amendment clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled, share-based payments and the accounting for modifications that change an award from cashsettled to equity-settled. It also introduces an exception to the principles in TFRS 2 that will require an award to be treated
as if it was wholly equity-settled, where an employer is obliged to withhold an amount for the employee’s tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to the tax authority.

•

TFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. This standard replaces
the guidance in TAS 39. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities;
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model.

•

TFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
TFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is a converged standard from the IASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The standard will improve the financial reporting of revenue and improve comparability of the top line in financial
statements globally.

•

Amendment to TFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods begining on or after 1
January 2018. These amendments comprise clarifications of the guidance on identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment (gross versus net revenue presentation). New and amended illustrative examples have been added for each of those areas of guidance. The IASB has also
included additional practical expedients related to transition to the new revenue standard.

-  TFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ regarding methods of disposal.
-  TFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, (with consequential amendments to TFRS 1) regarding servicing contracts.
-  TAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ regarding discount rates.
-  TAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’ regarding disclosure of information.
•

Amendment to TFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This amendment adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment
for such acquisitions.

•

Amendments to TAS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’, and TAS 41, ‘Agriculture’, regarding bearer plants, effective from
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These amendments change the financial reporting for bearer plants,
such as grape vines, rubber trees and oil palms. It has been decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the
same way as property, plant and equipment because their operation is similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently,
the amendments include them within the scope of TAS 16, instead of TAS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants will
remain within the scope of TAS 41.

•

Amendment to TAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and TAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’, on depreciation and amortisation,
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. In this amendment the it has clarified that the use
of revenue based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an
activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in the asset. It is also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset.

•

Amendments to TAS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ on the equity method, effective from annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. These amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.

•

Amendment to TFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and TAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’,
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.These amendments clarify the application of the consolidation exception for investment entities and their subsidiaries.

•

Amendment to TAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ on the disclosure initiative, effective from annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, these amendments are as part of the IASB initiative to improvepresentation and
disclosure in financial reports.
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2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective as of 31 December 2016

•

•

•

TFRS 16 ‘Leases’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, This standard replaces the current
guidance in IAS 17 and is a farreaching change in accounting by lessees in particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required
to make a distinction between a finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). TFRS 16
now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all
lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets;
however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as
the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation
of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees
is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under TFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Amendments to TFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’ regarding the implementation of TFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, effective
from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. These amendments introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. The amended standard will:
- Give all companies that issue insurance contracts the option to recognise in other comprehensive income, rather than
profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when TFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard is issued;
and
- Give companies whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from
applying TFRS 9 until 2021. The entities that defer the application of TFRS 9 will continue to apply the existing financial
instruments standard - TAS 39.

•

•

Amendment to TAS 40, Investment property’ relating to transfers of investment property, effective from annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. These amendments clarify that to transfer to, or from, investment properties there
must be a change in use. To conclude if a property has changed use there should be an assessment of whether the property meets the definition. This change must be supported by evidence.

Above mentioned amendments to the standards have not been expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.
c)

Reporting Currency
The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates (functional currency). The financial position of the entity and the end of activity are expressed in TRY, which is the
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

d) Offsetting/Deduction
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
B. Changes and Errors in Accounting Policies
Significant changes in accounting policies and significant accounting errors identified are applied retrospectively and the
prior period financial statements are restated.
C. Changes in Accounting Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of assumptions and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues expenses which are reported throughout the period. There is no any material
change in accounting estimates of the Company between 1 January - 31 December 2016.

Annual improvements 2014 - 2016, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. These amendments impact 3 standards:
- TFRS 1, ‘First-time adoption of TFRS’, regarding the deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters regarding
TFRS 7, TAS 19, and TFRS 10 effective 1 January 2018.
- TFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’ regarding clarification of the scope of the standard. These amendments should be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
- TAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’ regarding measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value
effective 1 January 2018.

IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where there is consideration
that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt
is made as well as for situations where multiple payments/receipts are made. The guidance aims to reduce diversity in
practice.

D.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a)

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considered the cash and bank deposits as a cash and cash equivalents for the preparation of statement
of cash flows (Note 4).

b) Trade receivables
Trade receivables generally consist of receivables from sales on credit terms based on preliminary sale agreements
and accounted for carrying value when the interest accrual for the term is not material (Note 5).
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2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

c)

Property, plant and equipment

g) Employee Termination Benefits

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, if any.
Any directly attributable costs of setting the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial
measurement. Depreciation is calculated over of the cost of property and equipment using the straight-line method
based on expected useful lives.

Long-term retirement pay provision
Provision for the employee termination benefits shows the present value of total liabilities resulting from retirement
of personnel in the future for the company in accordance with Turkish Labor Law. Under the Turkish Labor Law, the
Company is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who has completed at least one year of service and
whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for military service or dies.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis by allocating the cost of a tangible asset over its estimated useful
life. The expected useful lives are stated below:
Fixtures and furniture
Leasehold improvements

As a result of the amendment to TAS 19, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,
actuarial losses and gains arising from accounting for liabilities related to employee benefits are recognized directly
in equity and other comprehensive income/expense.  In this context, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the
profit or loss table for service and interest costs incurred during the period 1 January - 31 December 2016 and for
other comprehensive income or expenses ‘which are not reclassified to profit or loss in the shareholders’ equity in the
calculation of provision for retirement pay liability (Note 11).

Useful live
3-10 years
5 years

Gains and losses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book value of the
property and equipment from its sales and are included in the related income and expense accounts, as appropriate.

Provision for unused vacation

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its
recoverable amount and the provision for impairment is charged to expense accounts.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing asset (Note 6).

The unused vacation rights accrued on the financial statements represent the estimated total liability for future probable obligation of the employees on the date of the right to leave, which they did not use as of the balance sheet date
(Note 11).
h) Revenue
i) Service Revenue

d) Intangible assets

e)

f)

Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost, less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.  Estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each year and the effect of any change in the estimate
is accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets consist of computer softwares licences and are amortized
at between 3 and 15 years based on their economic lives (Note 7).

The Company’s services consist of licensing exams, various training activities, and licensing registry services. Service
revenue is measured at the fair value of the amount of receivable collected or to be received. Estimated discounts
and provisions are deducted from this amount. Sales taxes such as VAT are not included in the revenue. Where the
outcome of a transaction for service provision can be reliably estimated, the transaction related revenue transaction is
reflected in the financial statements taking into account the date they were accrued and the level of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting period  (Note 13).

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

ii) Interest income

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present implicit or legal obligation as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the specified criteria are not met, the Company
discloses the related issues in the notes (Note 9).

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and other comprehensive income statement on an accrual basis. Interest
income includes income from bank deposits (Note 14).

Trade payables
Trade payables consist of the amounts invoiced but not paid with the realized service purchases (Note 10).
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i)

Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates announced by
Turkish Republic Central Bank at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the financial statements as
financial income or expense.
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2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 - PRINCIPLES RELATED TO PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

j)

Earnings per share

n) Impairment of assets

Earnings per share are determined by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares that have been
outstanding during the period concerned (Note 17).
k)

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised at the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use.

Taxes calculated on corporate income

o) Statement of cash flows

Corporate Tax
Current year tax liability consists tax liability on period income calculated based on currently enacted tax rates as of
balance sheet date and according to tax legislation in force and includes adjustments related to previous years’ tax
liabilities.

In the statement of cash flows, cash flows include those from operating activities, investing activities and financing
activities.
Cash flows from operating activities represent the cash flows generated from the Company’s exam and training service activities.

If there is a legal right to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities or if the related assets and liabilities are
associated with income tax collected by the same tax authority, then it is offsetted.

Cash flows from investing activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided from the investing activities
of the Company (Tangible and intangible investments).

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, for temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Tax bases of assets and liabilities
comprise of the amounts that will impact taxable income in future periods based on the tax legislation.
Significant temporary differences arise from the provisions related to employee benefits and from tangible and intangible assets.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, where deferred tax assets resulting from
deductible temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Cash flows from financing activities represent the cash proceeds from the financing activities of the Company and the
repayments of these funds.
E.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments
For the next period, the Company makes estimations and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities.
Forecasts and decisions are continuously assessed. Such forecasts and decisions, including those expected to occur under the circumstances, are based on management’s experience and other factors. At the same time, management, apart from forecasts, also makes
certain decisions regarding the application of accounting principles.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to off/set current tax assets against current tax liabilities (Note 16).
l)

Related parties
For the purpose of the financial statements, shareholders of the company, organizations that are in indirect capital
relationships with the company, group companies, key management personnel and board members, are considered
and referred to as related parties. A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course
of business with market prices (Note 18).

m) Subsequent events
Subsequent events cover any events which arise between the reporting date and the balance sheet date, even if they
occurred after any declaration of the net profit for the period or specific financial information publicly disclosed. The
Group adjusts its financial statements if such subsequent events arise which require an adjustment to the financial
statements.
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3 - SEGMENT REPORTING

4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Since the Company’s shares does not trade in the stock exchange, the Company does not report in accordance with the
segments in the financial statements of the period ending at 31 December 2016.
4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Bank deposits

TRY Deposits
   - demand deposits
   - time deposits
   - blocked credit card accounts
Foreign currency deposits
- demand deposits

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

1,966
11,487,473

922
8,182,181

11,489,439

8,183,103

548,799
6,704,767
4,230,831

39,112
7,712,379
427,798

11,484,397

8,179,289

3,076

2,892

3,076

2,892

11,487,473

8,182,181

31 December 2016 (%)

31 December 2015 (%)

11.48

12.42

Weighted average interest rates of time deposits:

TRY

Cash and cash equivalents for the period ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Less: Blocked credit card accounts (-)
Less: Interest accrual of time deposits (-)

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

11,489,439
(4,230,831)
(4,206)

8,183,103
(427,798)
(76,147)

7,254,402

7,679,158

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

903,950
-

821,850
110

903,950

821,960

5 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

Record keeping receivables
Other

During the Capital Market Board’s Decision Making Body’s meeting dated 1 June 2015, no: 14, it was decided that starting from
31 December 2015, a record keeping fee will be charged to capital market institutions or publicly listed partnerships for each
of their employees working in a “position which requires a licence” by Sermaye Piyasası Lisanslama Sicil ve Eğitim Kuruluşu
A.Ş. as per the definition and extent of record keeping determined in Article 4, and Article 23 of the Board’s Communiqué (VII128.7) on guidelines concerning licensing and record keeping for those performing capital market functions. The annual fee
was determined to be TRY50 (including VAT) per person, and the record keeping receivables of TRY903,950 as of 31 December
2016 consist of the receivable amounts invoiced for each employee working in capital market organisations and publicly listed
partnerships in positions requiring licences as per the mentioned decision (31 December 2015: TRY821,850).

As of 31 December 2016, The Company has Euro denominated demand deposits amounting to TRY3,076 (31 December 2015:
TRY2,892).
As of 31 December 2016, Company’s time deposit accounts include TRY43,339 reverse repurchase agreements (31 December
2015: None). Maturity of the time deposits, is less than 2 months from the opening of accounts (31 December 2015: less than
1 month).
As of 31 December 2016 the Company has blocked credit card accounts amounting to TRY4,230,831 (31 December 2015:
TRY427,798). Blocked credit card accounts consists of blocked amounts arising from collections made with credit cards.
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6 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
1 January
2016

Additions

373,499
828,960

154,410
9,106

-

(520,625)

527,909
317,441

1,202,459

163,516

-

(520,625)

845,350

(214,476)
(381,798)

(90,992)
(259,711)

-

520,625

(305,468)
(120,884)

(596,274)

(350,703)

-

520,625

(426,352)

Disposals

Transfers

31 December
2016

Cost:
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Accumulated Depreciation:
Fixtures and furniture
Leasehold improvements

Net book value

606,185

418,998

1 January
2015

Additions

422,193
554,143

53,332
308,336

(107,994)
(27,551)

5,968
(5,968)

373,499
828,960

976,336

361,668

(135,545)

-

1,202,459

Disposals

Transfers

31 December
2015

Cost:
Fixtures and furniture
Leasehold improvements

Accumulated depreciation:
Fixtures and furniture
Leasehold improvements

Net book value

(162,115)
(231,997)

(71,831)
(162,128)

20,763
11,034

(1,293)
1,293

(214,476)
(381,798)

(394,112)

(233,959)

31,797

-

(596,274)

582,224

31 December 2016
Net book value, 1 January 2016
Additions
Depreciation (-)
Net Book Value, 31 December 2016

Softwares
487,464
178,706
(249,143)
417,027

31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation (-)
Net Book Value
31 December 2015
Net book value, 1 January 2015
Additions
Depreciation  (-)
Net Book Value, 31 December 2015

923,257
(506,230)
417,027
Yazılımlar
307,067
346,600
(166,203)
487,464

31 December 2015
Cost
Accumulated depreciation (-)

749,166
(261,702)

Net Book Value

487,464

There are no pledges or mortgages on the intangible assets of the Company (31 December 2015: None).

606,185

There are no pledges or mortgages on property, plant and equipments as of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: None).
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8 - OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSESTS

11 - PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Other current assests
Advances given and prepaid expenses
Personnel advances
Other

35,188
3,873

74,881
17,500
2,374

Unused vacation

39,061

94,755

Long-term provisions related to benefits provided to employees

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

12,055
4,307

12,055
6,546

16,362

18,601

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

9 - DEFERRED INCOME AND OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES

6,779

24,265

6,779

24,265

Other short-term liabilities
Value Added Tax (“VAT”) payables
Expense accruals (*)
Taxes, fees and other payables
Litigation provisions
Other

57,714

25,726

57,714

25,726

Provision for employment termination benefits

113,577

48,608

113,577

48,608

The provision for severance and retirement benefits, classified as long-term provisions related to benefits provided to employees, is set out below:
According to the Turkish Labor Law, the Company is obliged to pay termination indemnity for personnel who have completed
one year of employment and whose employment is terminated or retired, called for military service or died. After the legislative
amendment on May 23, 2002, some transition process items related to the previous service period before retirement were issued.
The severance payment can not exceed a certain ceiling amount which is TRY4,297.21 (31 December 2015: TRY3,828.37) as
of 31 December 2016 for each year of service.
The liability for termination benefits is not legally subject to any funding and there are no funding requirements.

Deferred incomes
Short term deferred income

31 December 2015

Short-term provisions related to benefits provided to employees

Other fixed assests
Deposits and guarantees given
Other

31 December 2016

663,431
239,377
138,017
32,000
-

663,586
106,127
49,150
208

1,072,825

819,071

(*) Expense accruals consist of the annual fee for International Bank for Reconstruction and Development and International
Development Association and audit fee expense accruals.

Provision for employment termination benefits is calculated by estimating the net present value of the probable liability that the
employees will have.
TAS/TFRSs issued by the Company foresees the development of actuarial valuation methods to estimate the enterprise’s retirement pay provision. The following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total liability:

Discount rate (%)
Circulation rate related to probability of retirement (%)

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

2.30
99.09

4.25
99.09

The principal assumption is that the ceiling set for each year of service will increase in line with inflation. The discount rate
applied thus represents the actual rate of inflation excluding the expected effects. The Company’s provision for employment
termination benefits is calculated as TRY4,426.16 (1 January 2016: TRY4,092.53) effective from 1 January 2017 since the retirement pay provision is set every six months.

10 - TRADE PAYABLES
31 December 2016

31 December 2015

75,281
6,607

276,216
16,186

81,888

292,402

Trade Payables
Trade payables
Due to related parties (Note 18)
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11 - PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

13 - SERVICE REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

The movement schedule of retirement pay provision is as follows:
2016

2015

48,608

40,562

Current service cost
Interest cost (Note 15)
Severence payments (-)
Actuarial losses (*)

40,533
12,493
(22,017)
33,960

19,180
5,104
(17,219)
981

Period end balance - 31 December

113,577

48,608

Opening balance - 1 January

(*) Actuarial loss amounting to TRY33,960 (31 December 2015: TRY981) arising in the following accounting period as of 31
December 2016 has been reclassified to “Other comprehensive income or expense not to be reclassified to profit or loss”
account in equity as TRY6,792 (31 December 2015: TRY196)  are accounted for by offsetting the deferred tax amount.

1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

Sales revenue
Sales returns (-)

16,755,365
(5,805)

15,506,062
(2,332)

Total sales, net

16,749,560

15,503,730

Cost of sales (-) (*)

(10,165,351)

(9,819,416)

Cost of total sales (-)

(10,165,351)

(9,819,416)

6,584,209

5,684,314

Service revenues

Cost of sales

Gross profit

(*) The cost of sales includes depreciation and amortisation amounting to TRY113,662 as of 31 December 2016 (31 December
2015: TRY130,369).

12 - EQUITY
The paid-in capital of the Company is TRY2,000,000 divided into 2,000,000 shares each with a nominal value of TRY1.
Issued and paid-in capital amounts are as follows with their book values as of 31 December 2016 and 2015:
31 December 2016
Shareholder
Türkiye Sermaye Piyasaları Birliği
Borsa İstanbul A.Ş.
Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu A.Ş.
İstanbul Takas ve Saklama Bankası A.Ş.
Türkiye Değerleme Uzmanları Birliği

14 - EXPENSES AND REVENUE BY NATURE

31 December 2015

Share (%)

TRY

Share (%)

TRY

49.0
20.0
10.5
10.5
10.0

980,000
400,000
210,000
210,000
200,000

49.0
20.0
10.5
10.5
10.0

980,000
400,000
210,000
210,000
200,000

100.0

2,000,000

100.0

2,000,000

The Company decided to increase its paid capital from TRY2,000,000 from its internal sources to TRY6,000,000 at the Board of
Directors meeting held on 29 December 2016. In this direction, approvals have been obtained from the Capital Markets Board
and the Ministry of Customs and Trade.
Retained earnings in statutory books can be distributed except the following for legal reserves.
The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”),
The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total
reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of
all cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can be used only to offset losses
and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in capital.
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1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

2,046,891
289,354
231,924
221,436
166,191
50,000
428,087

1,293,503
269,793
203,336
159,678
108,783
225,170

3,433,883

2,260,263

General administrative expenses
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortization charges
Office rental expenses
Membership fee expenses(*)
Consulting expenses
Donations
Other

(*) Expense accruals consist of the annual fee for International Bank for Reconstruction and Development and International
Development Association and audit fee expense accruals.
Marketing expenses
Advertising, promotion and organization expenses
Website design costs
Other

17,726
5,450
9,172

12,619
43,160
13,375

32,348

69,154
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14 - EXPENSES AND REVENUE BY NATURE (Continued)

16 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

980,752
3,126
27,959

592,046
566
14,951
12,920

1,011,837

620,48

213,322
11
-

2,959
81,079
19,365

213,333

103,403

Other operating expenses
Previous period expense(*)
Foreign exchange losses
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Other

(*) Previous period expenses amounting to TRY196,830 comprise of the depreciation expense of leasehold improvements in
2015.
15 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest cost of employee termination benefits (Note 11)

31 December 2015

882,074
(433,935)

734,430
(248,394)

448,139

486,036

Current income tax liability:

Other operating income
Interest income
Foreign exchange gains
Previous period income gains
Other

31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

12,493

5,104

12,493

5,104

Corporate tax provision
Less: Prepaid taxes (-)
Tax charge, net

Corporate income tax rate in Turkey is %20 (2015: %20). The corporate income tax rate is implemented to net profit calculated
by the addition of expenses that are not deductible in accordance with tax law and deduction of exemptions and discounts that
appears in tax law to corporations’ commercial profit. No further tax is paid if the profit is not distributed.
Companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are resident companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign companies. This rate was changed
to 15% for all Companies. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding tax.
Companies are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly at the rate of 20% on their corporate income in Turkey. Advance
tax is payable by the 17th of the second month following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the annual corporate tax liability. If, despite offsetting, there remains a paid advance tax amount, it may be refunded
or offset against other liabilities to the government.
Profit arising from the sale of investment properties and real estate held for at least 2 years 75% is taxable with the condition
that it is added to the capital as stipulated in the Corporate Tax Law or is kept in equity for 5 years.
Losses could be carried maximum 5 years to be deducted from the taxable profit in the oncoming years. However, losses could
not be carried back to offset against the profit of the previous years.
There is no such application for the reconciliation of payable taxes with the tax authority. Corporate tax returns are submitted
to the related tax office by the 25th day of the 4th month following the month when the accounting period ends. In tax reviews
authorised bodies can review the accounting records for the past five years and if errors are detected, tax amounts may change
due to tax assessment.
The tax expense as of 31 December 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follow:
1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

Current year tax expense (-)
Deferred tax income/(expense)

(882,074)
94,987

(734,430)
(36,421)

Total tax expense, net (-)

(787,087)

(770,851)

Reconciliation of the theoretical tax rate calculated using the legal tax rate of the Company with the current period tax deduction:
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2016

2015

Profit before tax

3,903,989

3,866,873

Theoretical tax charge at enacted rate of 20% (-)
Effect of disallowable espenses
Effect of other adjustments

(780,798)
(13,153)
6,864

(773,375)
(3,671)
6,195

Tax charge for the year (-)

(787,087)

(770,851)
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16 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

17 - EARNING PER SHARE

Deferred Tax:

The amount of earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net period profit by the weighted average share of the Company’s
shares during the period. The calculation is as follows:

The Company calculates deferred income tax assets and liabilities considering the effects of temporary differences arising in
the balance sheet as a result of different evaluations between these financial statements and the Tax Procedure Law.
Deferred income taxes are calculated on temporary differences that are expected to be realized or settled based on the taxable
income in coming years under the liability method using a principal tax rate of 20% (31 December 2015: 20%).
The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and the resulting deferred tax assets / (liabilities) provided at 31 December
2016 and 2015 using the enacted tax rates is as follows:
31 December 2016
Total temporary
differences

Total temporary
differences

Deferred
tax assets/
(liabilities)

233,958
113,577
57,714
32,000

46,792
22,715
11,543
6,400

18,900
48,608
25,726
-

3,780
9,722
5,145
-

437,249

87,450

93,234

18,647

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Deferred tax assets, net

For comprehensive income
Earnings per share (TRY1 per share)

Deferred tax asset
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3,116,902
2,000,000

3,096,022
2,000,000

1.5585

1.5480

3,089,734

3,095,237

1.5449

1.5476

(207,959)

(41,592)

(372,840)

(74,568)

(207,959)

(41,592)

(372,840)

(74,568)

45,858

(55,921)

a)  Transactions with related parties for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016

2015

(55,921)
94,987

(19,696)
(36,421)

6,792

196

45,858

(55,921)

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

825
-

2,805
13,381

825

16,186

Due to related parties

Shareholders
Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu A.Ş.
Türkiye Sermaye Piyasası Aracı Kuruluşları Birliği
Türkiye Değerleme Uzmanları Birliği

b)  Transactions with related parties for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

The deferred tax movement table is as follows:

Deferred tax liability at the beginning of the period (-)
Current period deferred tax income/(expense)
Accounted for under shareholders’ equity
     Tax effect of actuarial losses (Note 11)

1 January 31 December 2015

18 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Deferred tax assets
Expense accruals
Provision for employee termination benefits
Provision for unused vacation
Litigation provisions

Earnings per share (TRY1 per share)
Total comprehensive income

31 December 2015

Deferred
tax assets/
(liabilities)

Net profit attributable to shareholders
Weighted average number of issued shares

1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

13,720
-

5,268
2,512
1,271

13,720

9,051

Service sales to related parties

Shareholders
İstanbul Takas ve Saklama Bankası A.Ş.
Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu A.Ş.
Borsa İstanbul A.Ş.

79

SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

SERMAYE PİYASASI LİSANSLAMA SİCİL VE EĞİTİM KURULUŞU A.Ş.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘’TRY’’) unless otherwise stated.)

18 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

19 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS THAT RESULT FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
1 January 31 December 2016

1 January 31 December 2015

iii. Market risk disclosures
a. Risk of currency position

Service purchases from related parties

Foreign currency risk is the risk of exchange rate fluctuations arising from foreign currency assets, liabilities and offbalance sheet liabilities. As of December 31, 2016, the Company has foreign currency denominated assets amounting
to Euro 829 which is TRY3,076 (December 31, 2015: Euro 910 which is TRY2,892 foreign currency assets). As of December 31, 2016, the Company does not have any foreign currency liability (31 December 2015: USD 32,891 which is
TRY95,634 foreign currency liability).

Shareholders
Türkiye Değerleme Uzmanları Birliği
Türkiye Sermaye Piyasası Aracı Kuruluşları Birliği
Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu A.Ş.

41,720
24,500
20,815

11,340
125,736
16,701

87,035

153,777

b. Risk of interest position

c) Remuneration and fees paid to key management personnel is TRY551,582 as of 31 December 2016 (1 January - 31 December 2015: TRY599,881).

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing assets and liabilities. These exposures are managed by offsetting interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities and using derivative
instruments when considered necessary.

19 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS THAT RESULT FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company does not have any floating interest rate financial assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in debt and equity market
prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

Average interest rates applied to financial instruments at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

i.

Credit risk disclosures
A credit risk provision for trade receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due.
The Company’s credit risk mainly compesed of receivables and bank deposits.
The Company does not have any overdue receivables as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December  2015.
The Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk do not have any impaired assets.

ii. Liquidity risk disclosures
Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company to match the net funding requirements with sufficient liquidity. The Company
management tries to avoid liquidity risk from daily operations by trying to keep sufficient levels of cash and to have open
credit lines with creditors.
The Company has trade payables amounting to TRY81,888 as of 31 December 2016 (31 December  2015: TRY292,402),
the average term of which is 1 month.

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

11.48%

12.42%

Assets
TRY time deposit

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which information can be exchanged or a liability can be settled between knowledgeable and willing
parties for transactions that occur in accordance with market conditions.
The Company has determined the estimated fair values of financial assets carried at fair value using available market information and appropriate valuation methods. However, evaluating market information and estimating fair values requires interpretation and judgment.
Consequently, the estimates presented herein are not indicative of the amounts the Company could achieve in a current market
transaction.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments for which fair value estimates are practicable:
Financial assets at cost, such as banks and trade receivables, are considered to approximate their carrying values due to their
short-term nature.
Due to their short-term nature, it is assumed that the fair values of monetary liabilities approximate their carrying values.
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